SUGGESTED AGENDA

TAYLOR COUNTY BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
PERRY, FLORIDA

TUESDAY, JANUARY 2, 2024
6:00 P.M.

201 E. GREEN STREET
TAYLOR COUNTY ADMINISTRATIVE COMPLEX
OLD POST OFFICE

CONFERENCE LINE: 1-917-900-1022
ACCESS CODE: 32347#

THIS IS NOT A TOLL-FREE NUMBER AND YOU MAY BE SUBJECT TO
LONG DISTANCE CHARGES, ACCORDING TO YOUR LONG-
DISTANCE PLAN.

When the chairperson opens the meeting for public comment, please follow the below
instructions:

If you wish to speak please dial *5. The moderator will unmute your line when it is your turn to
speak, and notify you by announcing the last 4 digits of your telephone number. Please
announce your name and address. You will be allowed to speak for 3 minutes.

NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN, PURSUANT TO FLORIDA STATUTES
286.0105, THAT ANY PERSONS DECIDING TO APPEAL ANY MATTER
CONSIDERED AT THIS MEETING WILL NEED A RECORD OF THE
MEETING AND MAY NEED TO ENSURE THAT A VERBATIM RECORD OF
THE PROCEEDINGS IS MADE, WHICH RECORD INCLUDES THE
TESTIMONY AND EVIDENCE UPON WHICH THE APPEAL IS TO BE
BASED.

ANY PERSON WISHING TO ADDRESS THE BOARD REGARDING AN
AGENDAED ITEM WILL BE GIVEN THREE (3) MINUTES FOR COMMENT.
A COMMENTER MAY ONLY SPEAK ONE (1) TIME FOR EACH AGENDAED
ITEM.



1. Prayer
2, Pledge of Allegiance

3. Approval of Agenda

CONSENT ITEMS:

4. THE APPROVAL OF MINUTES NOVEMBER, 28, 2023; DECEMBER
4, 2023; DECEMBER 12, 2023 AND DECEMBER 19, 2023.

5. EXAMINATION AND APPROVAL OF INVOICES.

6. THE BOARD TO CONSIDER APPROVAL OF REQUEST TO RATIFY
THE SIGNATURE OF THE COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR FOR THE
ANNUAL MATCHING SAFETY GRANT FUND PROGRAM APPLICATION
FOR THE FIRST QUARTER OF THE 2023-2024 FISCAL YEAR, AS
AGENDAED BY LAWANDA PEMBERTON, COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR.

7. THE BOARD TO CONSIDER APPROVAL OF 2024 ELECTION CYCLE
HOLD HARMLESS AGREEMENTS, AS AGENDAED BY DANA
SOUTHERLAND, SUPERVISOR OF ELECTIONS.

8. THE BOARD TO CONSIDER APPROVAL OF LEASE OF FOREST
CAPITAL HALL FOR UPWARD SPORTS, AS AGENDAED BY THE
COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR.

9. THE BOARD TO CONSIDER APPROVAL OF REQUEST FOR 4-H
FUNDS TO BE RELEASED FOR THE 2023-2024 BUDGET YEAR TO
THE TAYLOR COUNTY 4-H FOUNDATION, AS AGENDAED BY LORI
WIGGINS, TAYLOR COUNTY EXTENSION DIRECTOR.

10. THE BOARD TO CONSIDER APPROVAL OF THE TAYLOR COUNTY
ARTIFICIAL REEF CONSTRUCTION GRANT AGREEMENT FWC NO.
23053 AND SERVE AS FISCAL AGENT, AS AGENDAED BY VICTOR
BLANCO, MARINE AGENT.

BIDS/PUBLIC HEARINGS:

11. THE BOARD TO HOLDA PUBLIC HEARING, SET FOR THIS DATE
AT 6:00 P.M., OR AS SOON THEREAFTER AS POSSIBLE, TO
RECEIVE PUBLIC INPUT FOR AN APPLICATION FOR SPECIAL
EVEVENT PERMITS (MUD-BOG), AS SUBMITTED BY IRON HORSE
MUD RANCH. (EVENT OF FEBRUARU 29T~ MARCH 3R° AND
OCTOBER 10TH - 13T, 6 2024 FROM 7:00 A.M. TO 7:00 P.M.)



GENERAL BUSINESS:

12.

THE BOARD TO FURTHER DISCUSS REDISTRICTING IN TAYLOR
COUNTY.

COUNTY STAFF ITEMS:

13.

THE BOARD TO DISCUSS AMENDMENT TO THE SHIP LOCAL

' HOUSING ASSISTANCE PLAN (LHAP) TO INCLUDE THE

DEMOLITION OF MOBILE HOMES AND THE REPLACEMENT THEREOF
WITH SITE-BUILT HOMES, AS AGENDAED BY MELODY COX,
GRANTS WRITER.

COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR ITEMS:

14,

15.

le.

17.

18.

19.

20.

THE BOARD TO CONSIDER APPROVAL OF REQUEST TO REMOVE
THE GRASS FROM BASEBALL FIELD #1 INFIELD, AS AGENDAED
BY THE COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR.

THE BOARD TO CONSIDER APPROVAL OF APPLICATION FOR
SOLID WASTE HAULING SERVICES PERMIT, AS AGENDAED BY
THE CQUNTY ADMINISTRATOR.

THE BOARD TO DISCUSS APPRAISAL REPORT FOR THE
POTENTIAL PURCHASE AND ACQUISITION OF THE SPRING
WARRIOR PARCEL, AS AGENDAED BY THE COUNTY
ADMINISTRATOR.

THE BOARD TO CONSIDER APPROVAL OF OPIOD SETTLEMENT
FUNDING IMPLEMENTATION PLAN, AS AGENDAED BY THE COUNTY
ADMINISTRATOR.

THE COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR TO DISCUSS INFORMATIONAL
ITEMS.

COMMENTS AND CONCERNS FROM THE PUBLIC FOR NON-AGENDAED
ITEMS:

BOARD INFORMATIONAL ITEMS:

Motion to Adjourn



FOR YOUR INFORMATION :

¢ THE AGENDA AND ASSOCIATED DOCUMENTATION, IF APPLICABLE, IS
AVAILABLE TO THE PUBLIC ON THE FOLLOWING WEBSITE:

www. taylorcountygov. com

e IF YOU ARE A PERSON WITH A DISABILITY WHO NEEDS ANY ACCOMODATION
IN ORDER TO PARTICIPATE IN THIS PRCCEEDING, YOU ARE ENTITLED, AT
NO COST TO YOU, TO THE PROVISION OF CERTAIN ASSISTANCE. PLEASE
CONTACT MARSHA DURDEN, ASSISTANT COUNTY ADMINISTRATOR, 201 E.
GREEN STREET, PERRY, FLORIDA, 850-838-3500, EXT.7, WITHIN TWO (2)
WORKING DAYS OF THIS PROCEEDING.

¢ BALLOTS USED TO APPOINT CITIZENS TO ADVISORY COMMITTEES AND
ADVISORY BOARDS ARE AVAILABLE FOR PUBLIC INSPECTION AFTER THE
MEETING AND ARE RETAINED AS PART OF THE PUBLIC RECORD.



TAYLOR COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

County Commission Agenda Item

SUBJECT/TITLE: | The Board to consider approval of request to ratify the signature
of the County Administrator for the Annual Matching Safety Grant
Fund Program Application for the first quarter of the 2023-2024
fiscal year.

MEETING DATE REQUESTED: | January 2, 2024

Statement of Issue: The Board to consider approval to ratify the
Matching Safety Grant Fund Program Application providing a 50%
match for risk management items and training purchased during the
2023-2024 fiscal year.

Recommended Action: Approve

Fiscal Impact: $4,335.41

Budgeted Expense: N/A

Submitted By: LaWanda Pemberton, County Administrator
Contact: 850-838-3500 ext. 6

SUPPLEMENTAL MATERIAL / ISSUE ANALYSIS

History, Facts & Issues: The Florida Municipal Insurance Trust's (FMIT) Annual
Matching Safety Grant Fund Reimbursement Program offers a 50% match up to
$3,000 for safety related expenditures related to risk reduction and up to $3,000 for
personal protection equipment related to workers compensation claims reduction.
Staff submitted expenditures for animal control officer training in the amount of
$5,500.00 in an effort to reduce workers compensation injuries, and $3,170.82 in
expenses for the replacement of the flooring at the Veteran’s Services/Grants office
in and effort to reduce the risk of trip and falls for citizens and employees. If
approved the 50% match award will result in a total of $4,335.41. Staff requests the
Board consider approval of request to ratify the signature of the County
Administrator. The application deadline for the first quarter was December 31, 2023.

Options: Approve

Attachments: FMIT Matching Safety Grant Fund Program Guidelines
Expenditures by department
Copy of electronic grant application




I M I I Protecting the Communities We Call Home

FLORIDA MUNICIPAL INSURANCE TRUST

FMIT SAFETY GRANT FUND PROGRAM
2023-2024 GUIDELINES

The Florida Municipal Insurance Trust's Safety Grant Fund Program is available to help FMIT members
pay for safety-and-health-related resources to help eliminate, reduce, or control exposure to loss. This
is a 50% matching fund program.

For example, if an entity spends $500 on a safety harness and submits a Safety Grant application for that amount, the entity
would be eligible for reimbursement in the amount of $250.

o Any entity participating in the FMIT Workers’ Compensation Insurance Program and/or
Property/Liability Insurance Program for the 2023 — 2024 policy year can apply for this Safety
Grant.

e The one-page Application can be found on your FMIT Member Dashboard at
https://insurance.flcities.com/member-login.

* Receipts/invoices are uploaded electronically when completing an Application via the FMIT
Member Dashboard.

e All purchases or invoices must be dated within the current fiscal year (October 1-September 30)
of the submitted application. Items submitted should reduce, control, or eliminate potential
losses or injuries and specifically address current losses and/or injuries.

Note: Costs associated with certified classroom training conducted by the FMIT, including Temporary Traffic
Control (Maintenance of Traffic), Defensive Driving (DDC4) and CPR/First Aid/AED, are not eligible for submission
under the FMIT Safety Grant Fund Program, as these courses are offered by the FMIT to our Membership at a
substantial discounted rate. The cost for these courses can only be submitted under the FMIT Safety Grant Fund
Program if a training provider other than the FMIT is utilized.

e [fyou are uncertain whether an item(s) will be approved, feel free to contact your Risk and Safety
Consultant (see contact information below).

e The entity must have a designated Safety Grant Coordinator. This person must provide all
necessary contact information. All contact relative to the application will be made to the Safety
Grant Coordinator. Electronic signatures are required for the Safety Grant Coordinator and the
Insurance Decision Maker.

e You can apply for the Fund Safety Grant at any time during the policy year. [f approved, grant
awards are paid out via ACH on a quarterly basis. Awards cannot exceed the maximum amount
allowed by the program per policy year based on the table below:

Page 1 of 3

Safety Grant Fund Guidehnes



F M I T Protecting the Communities We Call Home

FLORIDA MUNICIPAL INSURANCE TRUST

Premium Range | One Line Coverage 7| Two Lines Coverage
< $25,000 18500 ~1$1,000
$25,000 - $49,999 | $750 o [ eneee
$50,000 - $74,999 ' $1,000 $2,000
$75,000 - $99,999 | $1,500 $3,000
$100,000 -$200,000  $2500 | $5,000
> $200,000 | $3.000 $6,000

e [f the application is not received by the last day of the 1st, 2nd or 3rd quarter, the application will
be processed the following quarter. If a 4th quarter application is not received by the last day of
the 4th quarter, the application wili not be placed in line for review.

Fund Year 2023-2024

1st Quarter  October 1, 2023 to December 31, 2023
2nd Quarter January 1, 2024 to March 31, 2024

3rd Quarter  April 1, 2024 to June 30, 2024

4th Quarter  July 1, 2024 to September 30, 2024

e In the final (4") quarter, only members participating in the FMIT during the next policy year will
be eligible for funds.

e Safety grant fund awards will be disbursed until the funds are exhausted for the policy year.

o Multiple departments of an entity may apply for Safety Grant consideration. However, all Safety
Grant submissions must be completec and submitted together and the total reimbursement
request for 2n entity must not exceed the grant limits previously defined.

e Applications are reviewed by your Risk and Safety Consultant.

e You will receive a notification shortly after the quarter's end advising the reimbursement status
of your Safety Grant Application.

IMPORTANT
THE SAFETY GRANT PROGRAM IS A SERVICE PROVIDED BY THE FMIT FOR THE BENEFIT
OF ITS INSURED MEMBERS. BY USING THIS SERVICE, THE MEMBER UNDERSTANDS AND
ACKNOWLEDGES THERE IS NO GUARANTEE OF APPROVAL AND/OR PAYMENT.

Page 2 of 3
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Protecting the Communities We Call Home
\ 4

FLORIDA MUNICIPAL INSURANCE TRUST

If you have any questions or need further clarification or assistance with completing your application,
please do not hesitate to contact your Risk and Safety Consultant:

Sam Slay Trevor Reschny
Mobile: 850.596.7335 Mobile: 407.760.6170
sslay@flcities.com TReschny@flcities.com
Evan MacClellan Chaz Smith

Mobile: 386.804.7486 Mobile: 813.416.0584
emacclellan@flcities.com csmith@flcities.com

Jonathan Jaramillo
Mobile: 305.898.6396
jjaramillo@flcities.com

If you do not know your consultant, contact:

Christina Malhotra

Insurance Member Services Assistant
Direct: 407.367.1777
Toll-Free: 800.445.6248 ex 1777
cmalhotra@flcities.com

Anita Wick, Risk and Safety Specialist
Direct: 407.367.1734
Toll-Free: 800.445.6248 ex 1734
awick@flcities.com

Page 3 of 3
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Marsha Durden

From: (FMIT) Florida Municipal Insurance Trust <response@flcities.com>
Sent: Thursday, December 7, 2023 6:23 AM

To: Marsha Durden

Subject: FMIT Confirmation; Safety Grant Application

FLORIDA
MUNICIPAL
v INSURANCE TRUST

Safety Grant
Application

FMIT Member

FMIT Member h"adfor COI,nhf}_éoard of County
Name Commissioners
201 E Green Street PO Box 620

Address Perry, FL 32348
Safety Grant Coordinator
Full Name Marsha Durden
Email mdurden@tayicrcountygov.com
Phone 18508383500
insurance Decision Maker
“ull Name !La'\-'\.-’e:r.c..a Pemboerton !
cmail Icemberton@tayiorcountygov.com
Phone 8508383500

FMIT Fund your Eniity Participates in

Fund - Both
Receipt Total - Workers’ Comp . 5,500.00
[Receipt Total - Property/Liability ) 3,170.82




Description of Application

The FMIT Safety grant will be used to reimburse
for expenses related to Workers' Compensation
for Animal Control Officers by providing training
that will assist with employee safety for

aggressive animal control nrocedures to reduce

Descriptionjemployee injuries. Additionally, the FMIT Safety

Grant will be used to reduce Property/Liability at
the Veicrans Services office by assisting with
reimbursement for replacement of flooring that
inas missing or broken tiles in an effort {o reduce
irip and fail incidents for citizens and employees.

Safety Grani Coordinator's Signature

k.S

N\

Marsha Durden

12/7/2023

© Florida League of Cities, inc. All Rights Reserved.

]



TAYLOR COUNTY BOCC FMIT GRANT 06/2023

DEPARTMENT DEPT. # ITEM EXPENSE 50%
Liability
Veteran Services #0350 Floor replacement and installation $3,171 $1,585
Total *cannot exceed $3,000
Workers Compensation
Animal Control #0250 Safety training $5,500.00 $2,750.00
Total *cannot exceed $3,000
Grant Type txpense  §50% Reimb.
Workers Comp $5,500.00 $2,750.00
Liability $3,171 $1,585
Total $8,670.82 $4,335.41




Taylor County
Board of County Commissioners

PO Box 620

Peny, FL 32348

Submit origlnal invoice to above address

PURCHASE ORDER NO. 20240068

PAGE NO. 1

v[ 7835 B[ TAYLOR COUNTY ANTMAL conTROL |
5 AMERICAN ANIMAL CRUELTY INV. SCHOOL || 302 MAURICE LINTON
N P.o. BOX 4745 P
PENSACOLA FL 32507 7
0o PERRY, FL. 32347
RL A _
ATTN: GARY WAMBOLT
purchasing@taylorcountygov.com
ORDERDATE:10/10/23|BUYER: GARY WAMBOLT REQ. NO.: g2400075 {REQ. DATE:
TERMS: NET 30 DAYS [r.0B. DESC.. TRAINING
ITEM]  QUANTITY [uom DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE EXTENSION
01 10.00 ACO-FL-G ANIMAL CONTROL OFFICER 550.0000 5,500.00
CERTIFICATION CLASS (ON SITE TRAINING
1-10 OFFICERS)
i
!
ITEM ACCOUNT AMOUNT projecTcope | PAGE TOTAL § gr ggg : gg
010250 55401 5,500.00 TOTAL 5 2299
Taylor County is an AAP/EOE employer
and requires compliance with
Executive Order 11246

ﬁz’% 45 %émlsbabmo




TAYLOR COUNTY VENDOR NO. 7835

CHECK NO. 70459
Account Purchase Order. Invoice Number Amount Description
0250 55401 20240068 23-1901 5,520.00 ACO-FL~G ANIMAL CONTR
7832 AMERICAN ANIMAL C UELTY INV, SCHOOL
TAYLOR COUNTY Capia iy Bank 70459
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS e 63-68/631
PO Box 620 Date
Perry, FL 32348 10/18/23

GENERAL FUND

Amount FSi*****S, 500.00*

Pay THE SUM OF ******5500* DOLLARS AND NO* CENTS

7,
rote o0 L. Q&
e ae 100
Tome ; AMERICAN ANIMAL CRUELTY INV. SCHOOL

PO BOX 4745 (

Ctoung Koo
PENSACOLA FL 32507 T Clerk

PDF Copy Oniy - Non-Negotiable

TAYLOR COUNTY

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
PO Box 620

Perry, FL 32348

AMERICAN ANIMAL CRUELTY INV. SCHOOL
PO BOX 4745

PENSACOLA FL 32507



PURCHASE ORDER NO. 20240288

Taylor County
Board of County Commissioners
PO Box 620
Peny, FL 32348 PAGE NO. 1
Submit original invoice to above address
v[ 001456 1 ST tavior county Bcc Il
E W.S. BADCOCK CORPORATION | 201 E GREEN ST
g 1225 SOUTH JEFFERSON STREET P PERRY, FL 32348
0 PERRY FL 32348-4730 T
RL R S |
ATTN:
purchasing@taylorcountygov.com
ORDERDATE:11/1 4/23J BUYER: JAMI EVANS IREQ. NO.:R2400323|REQ.DATE:11/14/23
TERMS: NET 30 DAYS [F.oB.: |oEsC.:
iTEM|  QUANTITY | UOM DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE EXTENSION
01 31.00|EACH|MATHEW & PARLO LXP 100 VINYL FLOORING 74.2200 2,300.82
COLOR LP 09
ITEM ACCOLNT AMOUNT PROJECTCODE | PAGE TOTAL § gl ggg . g g
01]0350 54610 2,300.82 TOTAL__$ 2 *
Taylor County is an AAP/EOE employer
and requires compliance with
Executive Order 11246

ﬁz% I @% ;Ewﬁo




Taylor County

Board of County Commissioners
PO Box 620

Perry, FL 32348

Submit original invoice o above address

PURCHASE ORDER NO. 20240287

PAGE NO. 1

v[ 7843 1 31 verzrans 1
£ GEORGE C ARMSTRONG JR | 401 INDUSTRIAL PARK DRIVE
g 19655 JODY MORGAN ROAD p
PERRY FL 32347
0 PERRY, FL. 32348
RL JIu _
ATTN:
purchasing@taylorcountygov.com
ORDER DATE:11/14/23[BUYER: JAMI EVANS JREQ. NO.:R2400324|REQ.DATE:11/14/23
TERMS: NET 30 DAYS |F.0B. {DESC.:
mEM QUANTITY |UCM DESCRIPTION UNIT PRICE EXTENSION
01 696 .00]SQUA|INSTALLATION OF VINYL FLOORING 1.2500 870.00
696 SQUARE FOOT AT $1.25 PER SQUARE FOOT
i
i
i
;
i
| |
i \ i
ITEM ACCOUNT AMOUNT prRoJECTCoDE | PAGE TOTAL $ g;g . gg
TO .
01[0350 54610 870.00 TAL S
Taylor County is an AAP/EOE employer
and requires compliance with
Executive Order 11246
Bl bt N NRY
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TAYLOR COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

County Commission Agenda Item

SUBJECT/TITLE: | 2024 Election Cycle Hold Harmless Agreements

MEETING DATE REQUESTED: | January 2, 2024

Statement of Issue: Approval of the 2024 Election Cycle Hold Harmless Agreements

Recommended Action: Please have the Chairperson, Clerk, and County Attorney
sign all 14 agreements

Fiscal Impact: e
Budgeted Expense:
Submitted By: Supervisor of Elections

Contact: Dana Southerland

SUPPLEMENTAL MATERIAL /ISSUE ANALYSIS

History, Facts & Issues:
Options:

Attachments: Hold Harmless Agreements for all fourteen polling locations




LICENSE AND HOLD HARMLESS AGREEMENT FOR POLLING PLACE
PRECINCT ‘1

THIS AGREEMENT is made by TAYLOR COUNTY, a political subdivision of the State of
Florida, the LICENSEE, and First United Methodist Church, the LICENSOR, whose address is 302 N
Jefferson St, Perry, Florida 32347.

The LICENSEE desires to obtain the use of facilities necessary for the Supervisor of Elections to conduct

elections, and the LICENSOR has appropriate facilities for use as a polling place; THEREFORE, the parties agree as
follows:

1. GRANT OF LICENSE The LICENSOR hereby grants to the LICENSEE a license to occupy and
use, subject to all the terms and conditions stated herein, the following described premises, including available
parking areas and directly connecting passageways:

First United Methodist Church Fellowship Hall

2. TERM/USE OF PREMISES The above premises may be occupied and used by the LICENSEE as a
polling place for holding the following elections:

PRESIDENTIAL PREFERENCE PRIMARY ELECTION — MARCH 19, 2024
PRIMARY ELECTION - AUGUST 20, 2024

GENERAL ELECTION — NOVEMBER 5, 2024
The premises are to be occupied and used by the LICENSEE from 5:00 a.m. until all election day activities are

completed-on-the-above-dates-Also; the-HHCENSOR agrees to allow the LICENSEE accessibitity tothe premiseson
the day before the designated election day and the day after the designated election day for use by the election
team set-up crew in order to set-up and prepare the premises for voting on election day and to remove all election
related equipment the day after.

3. PAYMENT For the license granted by this Agreement, the LICENSEE will pay the LICENSOR $in
lrind-fo:-each-electson-th&pzemlsesareused.—No—paymem-shalLbe»dueand—ewmg—untnl—aﬁereaeh«electmn—and-if

the premises are not used for a particular election, no payment shall be made.

4, UTILITIES LICENSOR agrees to pay for all utilities (such as electricity, gas, water, and local
telephone service) consumed by the LICENSEE during the LICENSEE’S use of the premises. This includes use of
available air conditioning or heating equipment as needed.

5. CONDITION OF PREMISES The LICENSOR will provide the premises to the LICENSEE in a
clean and usable condition and the LICENSEE will be responsible for any necessary cleanup after use by the
LICENSEE.

oo 6 T INDEMNITY/HOLD HARMILESS —— —  ~~During the térm of this Agreéement thé LICENSEE

agrees to indemnify and hold the LICENSOR harmless from any damages, claims, or demands which may arise out

of any condition of the premises within the contro! of the LICENSEE, The LICENSEE agrees to indemnify and.hold

the LICENSOR harmless from all liability resulting from injury to persons or property due to the LICENSEE’'S

negligent use of the premises, to the extent of its waiver of sovereign immunity pursuant to section 768.28 Florida
Statutes. S

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this License and Hold Harmless Agreement for Polling
Place on the date stated below.

LICENSOR: WITNESS:

By:
Signsture 7
(Print or type name here)
Title:
Date:

LICENSEE: ATTEST:

By: Gary Knowles
Chair, BCC Clerk of Circuit Court
Date:

By:

Approved as to form and legal sufficiency
By: , County Attorney




————————completed-on-the-above dates-Also; the LICENSOR agrees toaltow the LICENSEE atcessibility to the premises on

LICENSE AND HOLD HARMLESS AGREEMENT FOR POLLING PLACE
PRECINCT 2

THIS AGREEMENT is made by TAYLOR COUNTY, a political subdivision of the State of
Florida, the LICENSEE, and Forest Capital Hall, the LICENSOR, whose address is 203 Forest Park Dr, Perry,
Florida 32348.

The LICENSEE desires to obtain the use of facilities necessary for the Supervisor of Elections to conduct

elections, and the LICENSOR has appropriate facilities for use as a polling place; THEREFORE, the parties agree as
follows:

1. GRANT OF LICENSE The LICENSOR hereby grants to the LICENSEE a license to occupy and
use, subject to ail the terms and conditions stated herein, the following described premises, including available
parking areas and directly connecting passageways:

Forest Capital Hall

2. TERM/USE OF PREMISES The above premises may be occupied and used by the LICENSEE as a
polling place for holding the following elections:

PRESIDENTIAL PREFERENCE PRIMARY ELECTION — MARCH 19, 2024
PRIMARY ELECTION - AUGUST 20, 2024

GENERAL ELECTION — NOVEMBER 5, 2024
The premises are to be occupied and used by the LICEMSEE from 6:00 a.m. until all election day activities are

the day before the designated election day and the day after the designated election day for use by the election
team set-up crew in order to set-up and prepare the premises for voting on election day and to remove all election
related equipment the day after.

3. PAYMENT For the license granted by this Agreement, the LICENSEE will pay the LICENSOR $ in

hndiomchelect&oﬁ%hepmmse&a%ed—N&paymen%shalLbedu&an&owinguntllaftereach election-and-if

the premises are not used for a particular election, no payment shall be made.

4. UTILITIES LICEMSOR agrees to pay for all utilities (such as electricity, gas, water, and local
telephone service) consumed by the LICENSEE during the LICENSEE’S use of the premises. This includes use of
available air conditioning or heating equipment as neaded.

5. CONDITION OF PREMISES The LICENSOR will provide the premises to the LICENSEE in a
clean and usable condition and the LICENSEE will be responsible for any necessary cleanup after use by the
LICENSEE.

6: INDEMINITY/HOLD HARMILESS —— " "Diifiig the term of this Agreement the LICENSEE
agrees to indemnify and hold the LICENSOR harmless from any damages, claims, or demands which may arise out

-._of any condition of the premises within the cantrol of the LICENSEE. The LICENSEE agrees to indemnify-and-hold

the LICENSOR harmless from all liability resulting from injury to persons or property due to the LICENSEE’S
negligent use of the premises, to the extent of its waiver of sovereign immunity pursuant to section 768.28, Florida

Statutes. I . S

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this License and Hold Harmless Agreement for Polling
Place on the date stated below.

LICENSOR: WITNESS:
By:
Signature
{Print or type name here)
Title:
Date:
LICENSEE: ATTEST: .
By: Gary Knowles
Chair, BCC Clerk of Circuit Court
Date:

By:

Approved as to form and legal sufficiency
By: , County Attorney




LICENSE AND HOLD HARMLESS AGREEMENT FOR POLLING PLACE
PRECINCT 3

THIS AGREEMENT is made by TAYLOR COUNTY, a political subdivision of the State of
Florida, the LICENSEE, and Blue Creek Baptist Church Fellowship Hall, the LICENSOR, whose address is

21028 Beach Rd, Perry, Florida 32348.

The LICENSEE desires to obtain the use of facilities necessary for the Supervisor of Elections to conduct
elections, and the LICENSOR has appropriate facilities for use as a polling place; THEREFORE, the parties agree as
follows:

1. GRANT OF LICENSE The LICENSOR hereby grants to the LICENSEE a license to occupy and
use, subject to all the terms and conditions stated herein, the following described premises, including available
parking areas and directly connecting passageways:

Blue Creek Baptist Church Fellowship Hall

2. TERM/USE OF PREMISES The above premises may be occupied and used by the LICENSEE as a

polling place for holding the following elections:
PRESIDENTIAL PREFERENCE PRIMARY ELECTION - MARCH 19, 2024
PRIMARY ELECTION — AUGUST 20, 2024
GENERAL ELECTION — NOVEMBER 5, 2024
The premlses are to be OCCUPIEd and used by the LICENSEE from 6:00 a.m. until all election day activities are

the day before the designated election day and the day after the desngnated electnon day for use by the election
team set-up crew in order to set-up and prepare the premises for voting on election day and to remove all election
related equipment the day after.

3. PAYMENT For the license granted by this Agreement, the LICENSEE will pay the LICENSOR $ in

kind for each election the premises.are used. No-payment shall-be-due-and-owing-until-after-each-election-and-if

—- 6 ——INDEMNITY/HOLD HARMLESS

the premises are not used for a particular election, no payment shall be made.

4, UTILITIES LICEMSOR agrees to pay for al! utilities (such as electricity, gas, water, and local
telephone service) consumed by the LICENSEE during the LICENSEE’S use of the premises. This includes use of
available air conditioning or heating equipment as needed.

5. CONDITION CF PREMISES The LICENSOR will provide the premises to the LICENSEE in a
clean and usable condition and the LICENSEE will be responsible for any necessary cleanup after use by the
LICENSEE.

agrees to indemnify and hold the LICENSOR harmless from any damages, claims, or demands which may arise out

____of any condition of the premises withir the cantrol of the LICENSEE. The LICENSEE agrees to.indemnify and hold _

the LICENSOR harmless from all liability resulting from injury to persons or property due to the LICENSEE’S
negligent use of the premises, to the extent of its waiver of sovereign immunity pursuant to section 768.28, Florida
Statutes.

— = During the term of this"Agreement the LICENSEE ——— ~~

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this License and Hold Harmless Agreement for Polling
Place on the date stated beiow.

LICENSOR: WITNESS:

By:
signaree
(Print or typa name here)
Title:
Date:

LICENSEE: ATTEST:

By: Gary Knowles
Chair, BCC Clerk of Circuit Court
Date:

By:

Approved as to form and legal sufficiency
By: , County Attorne)




LICENSE AND HOLD HARMLESS AGREEMENT FOR POLLING PLACE

PRECINCT 4

THIS AGREEMENT is made by TAYLOR COUNTY, a political subdivision of the State of
Florida, the LICENSEE, and Salem Baptist Church, the LICENSOR, whose address is 10400 Fish Creek Rd,

Salem, Florida 32356.

The LICENSEE desires to obtain the use of facilities necessary for the Supervisor of Elections to conduct
elections, and the LICENSOR has appropriate facilities for use as a polling place; THEREFORE, the parties agree as

follows:
1. GRANTY OF LICENSE

The LICENSOR hereby grants to the LICENSEE a license to occupy and

use, subject to all the terms and conditions stated herein, the following described premises, including available
parking areas and directly connecting passageways:

Salem Baptist Church -- Sunday School Rooms

2. TERM/USE OF PREMISES The above premises may be occupied and used by the LICENSEE as a
polling place for holding the following elections:
PRESIDENTIAL PREFERENCE FRIMARY ELECTION ~ MARCH 19, 2024
PRIMARY ELECTION - AUGUST 20, 2024

GENERAL

ELECTION - NOVEMBER 5, 2024

The premises are to be occupied and used by the LICENSEE from 5:00 a.m. until all election day activities are

—con a {113 0 ne premises-on -

the day before the designated election day and the day after the designated election day for use by the election
team set-up crew in order to set-up and prepare the premises for voting on election day and to remove all election

related equipment the day after.

3, PAYMENT For the license granted by this Agreement, the LICENSEE will pay the LICENSOR $ in

—#MRGWMemmde—mﬂymdeummmlmmmmﬁ

the premises are not used for a particular election, ho payment shall be made.

4, UTILITIES LICENSOR agrees to pay fcr all uiilities (such as electricity, gas, water, and local
telephone service) consured by the LICENSEE during the LICENSEE’S use of the premises. This includes use of
available air conditioning or heating equipment as needed.

5. CONDITION OF PREMISES The LICENSOR will provide the premises to the LICENSEE in a
clean and usable condition and the LICENSEE will be responsible for any necessary cleanup after use by the
LICENSEE.
T T 6. INDEMINITY/HOLD HARMLESS During the term of this Agreement the LICENSEE =~

agrees to indemnify and hold the LICENSGR harmless from any damages, claims, or demands which may arise out

—— ——of any condition of the premises-within-the.control of the LICENSEE. The-LICENSEE-agrees to-indemnify-and-hold— -

the LICENSOR harmless from all liability resulting from injury to persons or property due to the LICENSEE’S

negligent use of the premises, to the extent
Statutes.

of its waiver of sovereign immunity pursuant to section 768.28, Florida

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this License and Hold Harmless Agreement for Polling

Place on the date stated below.

LICENSOR: WITNESS:
By:
: Signatura

{Print or type name here)
Title:
Date*

LICENSEE: ATTEST:

By: Gairy Knowles
Chair, BCC Clerk of Circuit Court
Date:

By:

Approved as to form and legal sufficiency
By: :

, County Aitorney




LICENSE AND HOLD HARMLESS AGREEMENT FOR POLLING PLACE
PRECINCT 5

THIS AGREEMENT is made by TAYLOR COUNTY, a political subdivision of the State of
Florida, the LICENSEE, and Steinhatchee Community Center, the LICENSOR, whose address is 1013 S
Riverside Dr, Steinhatchee, Florida 32359,

The LICENSEE desires to obtain the use of facilities necessary for the Supervisor of Elections to conduct
elections, and the LICENSOR has appropriate facilities for use as a polling place; THEREFORE, the parties agree as
follows:

1. GRANT OF LICENSE The LICENSOR hereby grants to the LICENSEE a license to occupy and
use, subject to all the terms and conditions stated herein, the following described premises, including available
parking areas and directly connecting passageways:

Steinhatchee Community Center

2. TERM/USE OF PREMISES The above premises may be occupied and used by the LICENSEE as a
polling place for holding the following elections:

PRESIDENTIAL PREFERENCE PRIVIARY ELECTION — MARCH 19, 2024
PRIMIARY ELECTION - AUGUST 20, 2024

GENERAL ELECTION — NOVEMBER 5, 2024
The premises are to be occupied and usec by the LICENSZE from 6:00 a.m. until all election day activities are

‘*—;klnﬂomm&moﬁhmmmmwmﬁhﬂm:emdwmnmﬁemmm

grees 1o allow accessibility o the premises on
the day before the designated election day and the day after the designated election day for use by the election
team set-up crew in order to set-up and prepare the premises for voting on election day and to remove all election
related equipment the day after.

3. PAYMENT For the license granted by this Agreement, the LICENSEE will pay the LICENSOR $ in

the premises are not used for a particular election, no payment shall be made.

4. UTILITIES LICEMSCR agrees to pay for alf utilities (such as electricity, gas, water, and local
telephone service) consumed by the LICENSEE during the LICENSEE’S use of the premises. This includes use of
available air conditioning or heating equipment as needed.

5. CONDITION OF PREMISES The LICENSCOR will provide the premises to the LICENSEE in a
clean and usable condition and the LICENSEZ will be responsible for any necessary cleanup after use by the
LICENSEE.

6. NDEMNITY/HOLD HARMIESS " buring the term of this Agreement the LICENSEE
agrees to indemnify and kold the LICENSOR harmless from any damages, claims, or demands which may arise out

of any-condition-of the-premises-within-the-control-of the LICENSEE-The-LICENSEE-agrees-to-indemnify-and-hold- - - -

the LICENSOR harmless from all liability resulting from injury to persons or property due to the LICENSEE’S
negligent use of the premises, to the extent of its waiver of sovereign immunity pursuant to section 768.28, Florida
Statutes,

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executad this License and Hold Harmless Agreement for Polling
Place on the date stated below.

LICENSOR: WITNESS:
By:
Sigrature
(Print or type name heve)
Title: -
Date*
LICENSEE: ATTEST:
By: , Gary Knowles
Chair, BCC Clerk of Circuit Court
Date:

By:

Approved as to form and legal sufficiancy
By: » County Atforney




LICENSE AND HOLD HARMLESS AGREEMENT FOR POLLING PLACE
PRECINCT 6

THIS AGREEMENT is made by TAYLOR COUNTY, a political subdivision of the‘ State of
Florida, the LICENSEE, and Shady Grove Community Center, the LICENSOR, whose address is 3845 Alton
Wentworth Rd, Shady Grove, Florida 32357.

The LICENSEE desires to obtain the use of facilities necessary for the Supervisor of Elections to conduct
elections, and the LICENSOR has appropriate facilities for use as a polling place; THEREFORE, the parties agree as
follows:

1. GRANT OF LICENSE The LICENSOR hereby grants to the LICENSEE a license to occupy and
use, subject to all the terms and conditions stated herein, the following described premises, including available
parking areas zind directly connecting passageways:

Shady Grove Community Center

2. TERM/USE OF PREMISES The above premises may be occupied and used by the LICENSEE as a
polling place for holding the following elections:
PRESIDENTIAL PREFERENCE FRIVIARY ELECTION — MARCH 19, 2023
PRIMARY ELECTION ~ AUGUST 20, 2024

GENERAL ELECTION ~ NOVEMBER 5, 2024
The premises are to be occupied and used by the LICENSEE from 6:06 2.m. until all election day activities are

—completed-on-tire-abovedates:-Also; the LICEN s ibilityto the premises on

the day before the designated election day and the day after the desugnated election day for use by the election
team set-up crew in order to set-up and prepare the premises for voting on election day and to remove all election
related equipment the day after.

3. PAYMENT For the license granted by this Agreement, the LICENSEE will pay the LICENSOR $ in

WMWMWWW—NOMMWMlHﬂWWU if

the premises are not used for a particular eiection, no payment shall be made.

4, UTILITIES LICENSOR agraes to pay for all utilities (such as electritcity, gas, water, and local
telephene service) consumed by the LICENSEE during the LICENSEE’S use of the premises. This includes use of
available air conditioning or heating equipment as needed.

5. CONDITION OF PREMISES The LICENSOR will provide the premises to the LICENSEE in a
clean and usablz2 condition and the L)CENSEE will be responsable for any necessary cleanup after use by the
LICENSEE.

—wmmumumuhe»mtmmmeucsNSEE—agrees—to—indemnify—andhold

6: iINDEVINITY/HOLD HARMLESS During the term of this Agreement the LICENSEE
agrees to indemrify and hold the LICENSOR harmless from any damages, claims, or demands which may arise out

the LICENSOR harmless from all fiability resulting from injury to persons or property due to the LICENSEE’S
negligent use of the premises, to the extent of its waiver of sovereign immunity pursuant to section 768.28, Florida
Statutes. - B

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have exacuted this License and Hold Harmless Agreement for Polling
Place on the date stated below.

LICENSOR: WITNESS:

By:
Sigrature
(Print or type namie here)
Title:
Date:

LICENSEE: ATTEST:

By: Gary Knowies
Chair, BCC Clerk of Circuit Court
Date:

By:

Approved as to form and legal sufficiency
By: , County Atterney




LICENSE AND HOLD HARMLESS AGREEMENT FOR POLLING PLACE
PRECINCT 7

THIS AGREEMENT is made by TAYLOR COUNTY, a political subdivision of the State of
Florida, the LICENSEE, and Boyd Methodist Church, the LICENSOR, whose address is 2458 Boyd Rd, Perry,
Florida 32347.

The LICENSEE desires to obtain the use of facilities necessary for the Supervisor of Elections to conduct
elections, and the LICENSOR has appropriate facilities for use as a polling place; THEREFORE, the parties agree as
follows:

1. GRANT OF LICENSE The LICENSOR hereby grants to the LICENSEE a license to occupy and
use, subject to ail the terms and conditions stated herein, the following described premises, including available
parking areas and directly connecting passageways:

Boyd Methodist Church Fellowship Hall

2. TERM/USE OF PREMISES The above premises may be occupied and used by the LICENSEE as a
polling place for holding the following elections:

PRESIDENTIAL PREFERENCE PRIMARY ELECTION — MARCH 19, 2024
PRIMARY ELECTION ~ AUGUST 20, 2024

GENERAL ELECTION — NOVEMBER 5, 2024
The premlses are to be occupled and used by the LICEMSEE from 6:00 a.m. until all election day activities are

NSEE-accessibility-to the premiseson

' the day before the deSIgnated election day and the day after the designated election day for use by the election
team set-up crew in order to set-up and prepare the premises for voting on election day and to remove all election
related equipment the day after.

3. PAYMENT For the license granted by this Agreement, the LICENSEE wnll pay the LICENSOR $ in

the premises are not used for a particular election, no payment shall be made.

4, UTILITIES LICENSOR agrees to pay for all utilities (such as electricity, gas, water, and local
telephone service) consumed by the LICENSEE during the LICENSEE’S use of the premises. This includes use of
available air conditioning or heating equipment as neaded.

5. CONDITION OF PREMISES The LICENSOR will provide the premises to the LICENSEE in a
clean and usable condition and the LICENSEE will be responsible for any necessary cleanup after use by the
LICENSEE.

67 OLD-HARMLESS—— - — ——During the-term-of -this-Agreement-the-tICENSEE -
agrees to indemn-w and hold the LICENSOR harmless from zny damages, claims, or demands which may arise out

of any condition of the premises within the contro! of the LICENSEE. The LICENSEE agrees to indemnify andhold

the LICENSOR harmiess from all liability resulting from injury to persons or property due to the LICENSEE'S
negligent use of the premises, to the extent of its waiver ot sovereign immunity pursuant to section 768.28, Florida
Statutes.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this License and Hold Harmless Agreement for Polling
Place on the date stated below.

LICENSOR: WATMESS:

By:
Signatura
{Print or type name here}
Title:
Date:

LICENSEE: ATTEST:

By: Gary Knowles
Chair, BCC Cierk of Circuit Court
Date:

By:

Approved as to form and legal sufficiency
By: , County Attorney




LICENSE AND HOLD HARMLESS AGREEMENT FOR POLLING PLACE
PRECINCT 8

THIS AGREEMENT is made by TAYLOR COUNTY, a political subdivision of the State of
Florida, the LICENSEE, and United Steel Workers Union Bldg, the LICENSOR, whose address is 1878 S Old
Dixie Hwy, Perry, Florida 32348.

The LICENSEE desires to obtain the use of facilities necessary for the Supervisor of Elections to conduct
elections, and the LICENSOR has appropriate facilities for use as a polling place; THEREFORE, the parties agree as
follows:

1. GRANT OF LICENSE The LICENSOR hereby grants to the LICENSEE a license to occupy and
use, subject to all the terms and corditions staied herein, the following described premises, including available
parking areas and directly cennecting passageways:

United Steel Workers Union Bldg

2. TERM/USE OF PREMISES The ahove premises may be occupied and used by the LICENSEE as a
polling place for holding the following elections:

FRESIDENTIAL PREFERENCE PRIMARY ELECTION — MARCH 19, 2024

PRIMARY ELECTION — AUGUST 20, 2024

GENERAL ELECTION — NOVEMBER 5, 2024
The premlses are to be occup:ed and used by the LICENSEE from 5:00 a.m. until all election day actlvmes are

the day before the demgnated election day and the day after the designated election day for use by the election
team set-up crew in order to set-up and prepare the premises for voting on election day and to remove all election
related equipment the day after.

3. ~ PAYMENT For the license granted by this Agreement, the LICENSEE will pay the LICENSOR $ in

mnﬂomckehdmfhevmmmmmeﬂvmmeﬂhﬁ%&dmﬂwmgﬂnmﬂ&emaehﬁem

the premises are not used for a particular election, no payment shall be made.

4. UTILITIES LICEMSOR agraes to pay for all utilities (such as electricity, gas, water, and local
telephone service) consumed by the LICENSEE during the LICENSEE'S use of the premises. This includes use of
available air conditioning or heating equipment as needed.

5. CONDITION OF PREMISES The LICENSCR will provide the premises to the LICENSEE in a
ciran and usable condition and the LICENSEE will be responsible for any necessary cleanup &fter use by the
LICENSEE.
T T T T, T INDEMINITY/HOLD HaSMIESS T T During the term of this Agreément the LICENSEE T

agrees to indemnify and kold the LICENSOR harmiless from any damages, claims, or demands which may arise out
—eof-any-conditien-of the-premises within-the contralof-the LICENSEE. The LICENSEE-agrees to-.indemnifyand-hold— . —

the LICENSOR harmiess from all liability resulting from injury to persons or property due to the LICENSEE’'S

negligent use of the premises, to the extent of its waiver of sovereign immunity pursuant to section 768.28, Florida
e Statutes

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the partias have executed this License and Hold Harmless Agreement for Polling
Place on the date stated balow.

LICENSOR: WITNESS:

By:
Sigratces
(Print or type name here)
Title: e
Date:

LICENSEE: ATTEST:

By: Gary Knowles
Chair, BCC Clerk of Circuit Court
Date:

By:

Approved as tc ferm and legal sufficiency
By: . » County Attorney




LICENSE AND HOLD HARMLESS AGREEMENT FOR POLLING PLACE
PRECINCT 9

THIS AGREEMENT is made by TAYLOR COUNTY, a political subdivision of the State of
Florida, the LICENSEE, and Forest Capital Hall, the LICENSOR, whose address is 203 Forest Park Drive,
Perry, Florida 32348.

The LICENSEE desires to obtain the use of facilities necessary for the Supervisor of Elections to conduct
elections, and the LICENSOR has appropriate facilities for use as a polling place; THEREFORE, the parties agree as
follows:

1. GRANT OF LICENSE The LICENSOR hereby grants to the LICENSEE a license to occupy and
use, subject tc ail the terms and conditions stated herein, the following described premises, including available
parking areas and directly connecting passageways:

Forest Capital Hall
TERM/USE OF PREMISES The above premises may be occupied and used by the LICENSEE as a

2.

polling place for holding the following elections:
PRESIDENTIAL PREFERENCE PRIMARY ELECTION - MIARCH 19, 2024
PRIMIARY ELECTION ~ AUGUST 20, 2024

GENERAL ELECTION — NOVEMBER 5, 2024
The prermses are to be occup:ed and used by tHe HCE‘ISE'-' from 6:00 a.m. until all electlon day actwntles are

——mmmmmmmmmnﬂmﬂmwmf

the day before the designated elect:on day and the day after the desngnated election day for use by the election
team set-up crew in order to set-up and prepare the premises for voting on election day and to remove all election
related equipment the day after.

3. PAYMENT For the license granted by this Agreement, the LICENSEE will pay the LICENSOR $ in

the premises are not used for a particular eleciion, no payment shall be made.

4. UTILITIES LICENSOR agraas to nay for all utilities (such as electricity, gas, water, and local
telephene servic2) consumed by the LICENSEE during the LICENSEE’S use of the premises. This includes use of
available air conditioning or heating equipment as needed.

5. ZONDIT!ON OF PREMISES The LICENSOR will provide the premises to the LICENSEE in a
clean and usahle condition and the LICENSEE will be responsible fer any necessary cleanup after use by the
LICENSEE.

TEEG

blas

6. INDEMNITY/HOLD HARNI!
agrees to indemnify and hold the LICENSOR harmless from any damages, claims, or demands which may arise out

the LICENSOR harmless from all liakility resuiting from injury to persons or property due to the LICENSEE’'S
negligent use of the preinises, to the extenc of its waiver of socvereign immunity pursuant to section 768.28, Florida
Statutes.

Tring the term of this Agreement the LICENSEE ~

o of any condition of the premises within the control of the LICENSEE. The LICENSEE agrees-to-indemnify-and-hold_ ...

IN WITNESS WHEREOGF, the parties have executad this License and Hold Harmless Agreement for Polling
Place on the date staied below.

LICENSOR: WITNESS:

By: .
Signature
{Print o1 type name hare)
Title: e
Date:

LICENSEE: ATTEST:

By: Gary Knowles
Chair, BCC Cierk of Circuit Court
Date:

By:

Approved as to form and legai sufficiency
By: '

. County Attorney




LICENSE AND HOLD HARMLESS AGREEMENT FOR POLLING PLACE
PRECINCT 10

THIS AGREEMENT is made by TAYLOR COUNTY, a political subdivision of the State of
Florida, the LICENSEE, and Lakeside Baptist Church, the LICENSOR, whose address is 3111 Highway 27 E,

Perry, Florida 32348.

The LICENSEE desires to obtain the use of facilities necessary for the Supervisor of Elections to conduct
elections, and the LICENSOR has appropriate facilities for use as a polling place; THEREFORE, the parties agree as
follows:

1. GRANT OF LICENSE The LICENSOR hereby grants to the LICENSEE a license to occupy and
use, subject to all the terms and conditicns stated herein, the following described premises, including available
parking areas and directly connecting passageways:

Lakeside Bantisit Church Fellowship Hall

2. TERM/USE OF PREMISES The above premises may be occupied and used by the LICENSEE as a
polling place for holding the following elections:
PRESIDENTIAL PREFERENCE PRIMIARY ZLECTION — MARCH 19, 2024
PRIMIARY ELECTION - AUGUST 20, 2024
GENERAL ELECTION ~ NOVEMBER 5, 2024
The premises are to be occupied and used oy the LICEMSEE {rom 6:00 z.m. until all election day activities are

TO " -TIR (O accessibility to remises on
the day before the designated election day and the day after the designated election day for use by the election
team set-up crew in order to set-up and prepare the premises for voting on election day and to remove all election
related equipment the day after.

3. PAYMENT For the Hicanse granted by this Agreement, the LICENSEE will pay the LICENSOR $ in

———hﬂdﬁrwe&demoﬁhemmhemmﬁrmmmhmwmmmntﬂaﬁmmd if

the premises are not used for a particular zleciion, no payment shall be made.

4., UTILITIES LICENSOR agrses 2o pay for all utilities (such as electrizity, gas, water, and local
telephcne service} consumed by the LITENSEE during the LICENSEE’'S use of the premises. This includes use of
available air conditioning or heating equipment as neaded.

5. CONDIT!ON OF PREMISES The LICENSOR will provide the premises to the LICENSEE in a
clean and usable condition and the LICENSEZ will ba responsible for any necessary cleanup after use by the
LICENSEE.

e, INDEMINITY/HOLD HARMILESST 77 During the term of this Agreement the LICENSEE
agrees %o indemnify and Ho!d the L‘Cuwa}s’ harrs ’*vs from zny damagss, claims, or demands which may arise out

:a-LICENSEE. The LICENSEE-agrees-to-indemnify-and-hold— - ——
the LICENSOR harmless from all hab'uty resultmg from injury to persons or property due to the LICENSEE’'S
negligent use of the premises, to the exizac of its waiver of sovereign immunity pursuant to section 768.28, Florida
Statutes,

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this License and Hold Harmless Agreement for Polling
Place on the date stated below.

LICENSOR: WiTNESS:

By: _—
JEnzture
{Print or type name nere)
Title .
Date:

LICENSEE: ATTEST:

By: Gary Knowles
Chair, BCC Clerk of Circuit Court
Date:

Approved as o form and lega!l sufficiency

By:

By:

» County Attorne)




LICENSE AND HOLD HARMLESS AGREEMENT FOR POLLING PLACE
PRECINCT 11

THIS AGREEMENT is made by TAYLOR COUNTY, a political subdivision of the State of
Florida, the LICENSEE, and Athena Baptist Church, the LICENSOR, whose address is 10060 Josh Ezell

Grade, Perry, Florida 32348.

The LICENSEE desires to obtain the use of facilities necessary for the Supervisor of Elections to conduct
elections, and the LICENSOR has appropriate facilities for use as a polling place; THEREFORE, the parties agree as
follows:

1. GRANT OF LICENSE The LICENSOR hereby grants to the LICENSEE a license to occupy and
use, subject to all the terms and conditions stated herein, the following described premises, including available
parking areas and directly connecting passageways:

Athana Baptist Church Fellowship Hall

2. TERM/USE OF PREMISES The above premises may be occupied and used by the LICENSEE as a
polling place for holding the following elections:

PRESIDENTIAL PREFERENCE PRINMIARY ELECTION — MARCH 19, 2024
PRIMARY ELECTION - AUGUST 20, 2024
GENERAL ELECTION — NOVEMBER 5, 2024
The premises are to be occupied and used by the LICENSEE from £:00 a.m. until all election day activities are

tompleted on the above dates. Also, the LICENSUR agrees to allow the LICENSEE accessibility 1o the premises on
the day before the designated election day and the day after the designated election day for use by the election
team set-up crew in order to set-up and prepare the premises for voting on election day and to remove all election
related equipment the day after.

3. PAYMENT For the licensa grentad by this Agreement, the LICENSEE will pay the LICENSOR $ in

kind-for-each-clection-the premises-are-used—ho-payment shattbe-due-and-owing-untitafter-each-election-and-if

the premises are not used for a particular eiection, no payment shall be made.

4. UTILITIES LICEMSOR agraes to pay for all utilities (such as electricity, gas, water, and local
telephone service) consumed by the UCENSEE during the LICENSEE’'S use of the premises. This includes use of
available air conditicning or heating equipment as needed.

5. ZONDITION OF PREMISES The LICENSOR will provide the premises to the LICENSEE in a
clean and uszble condition and the LICENSEE will bz rasponsible for anv nacessary cleanup after use by the
LICENSEE.
T TR, T INDEMINITY/HOLD HARAILEES T During the term of this Agreement the LICENSEE =~

agrees to indemnify and hold the LICENSOR harmless from zny damages, claims, or demands which may arise out

- ofanycondition-ofthe premiseswithinthe-zentrol-of the LICENSEE-The LICENSEE-agrees-to-indemnify-and-hold——-
the LICENSOR harmiess from all iiability resulting from injury to perscens or property due to the LICENSEE'S
negligent use of the premises, to the exieac of its waiver of sovareign immunity pursuant to section 768.28, Florida
Statutes

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties hava executad this License anad Hold Harmless Agreement for Polling
Place on the date staied below.

LICENSOR: WITNESS:

By:

grawer

iPrint of type same harej

Title: —
Date:

LICENSEE: ATYEST:

By: Gary Knowles
Chair, BCC Cleri of Circuit Court
Date:

Approved as to form and legal sufficiency
By: » County Astorae)




_ kind for each election the premises are used. No payment shall be due and_owing until after each electionand if

LICENSE AND HOLD HARMLESS AGREEMENT FOR POLLING PLACE
PRECINCT 12

THIS AGREEMENT is made by TAYLOR COUNTY, a political subdivision of the State of
Florida, the LICENSEE, and Perry Shrine Building, the LICENSOR, whose address is 1050 Courtney Rd,
Perry, Florida 32347.

The LICENSEE desires to obtain the use of facilities necessary for the Supervisor of Elections to conduct

elections, and the LICENSOR has appropriate facilities for use as a poiling place; THEREFORE, the parties agree as
follows:

1. GRANT OF LICENSE The LICENSCR heraby grants to the LICENSEE a license to occupy and
use, subject o all the terms and conditicns statad herein, the following described premises, inciuding available
parking areas and directly connecting passageways:

Perry Shrine Building

2. TERM/USE OF PREMISES The above pramises may be occupied and used by the LICENSEE as a
polling place for holding the following elections:
FRESIDENTIAL PREFERENCE PRIMIARY ELECTION — MARCH 19, 2024

PRIMIARY ELECTION - AUGUST 20, 2024

GENERAL ELECTION -~ NOVEMBER 5, 2024
The premlses are to be occupied and used by the LICENSEE: from 6:00 a.m. until all electlon day actlvmes are

the day before the desxgnated electuon day and the day after the desugnated electaon day for use by the election
team set-up crew in order to set-up and prepare the premises for voting on election day and to remove all electlon
related equipment the day aiter.

3. PAYMENT For the license granted by this Agreement, the LICENSEE will pay the LICENSOR $ in

the premises are not used for a particular election, no payment shall be made.

4. UTILITIES LICEMSOR agrees to nay for all uglities (such as electricity, gas, water, and local
telephone service) consumed by the LUCENSEE during the LICENSEE’S use of the premises. This includes use of
available air conditioning 2r eating equipment as needed.

5. LONDITIOM OF PREVISES The LICENSOR will provide the premises to the LICENSEE in a
clean and usable condition and the LICENSEZ will be responsible for any necessary cleanup after use by the
LICENSEE.

-G INDEMNITYHOLD- HARMLESE - - Buring-the “ermof this Agreement-the LICENSEE
agreas to indemnity and koid the LICENSOR harmless from anv damages, claims, or demands which may arise out

of any conditicn of the premises witi:in tha control of the LICENSEE. The LICENSEE agrees to indemnify and hold

the LICENSOR harmiess from all fiabitity resulting from injury to persons or property due to the LICENSEE’S
negligent use of the premises, {6 tha extent of its waiver of sovereign immunity pursuant to section 768.28, Florida
Statutes.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the parties have executed this License and Hold Harmless Agreement for Polling
Place on the date stsied below.

LICENSOR: WITHESS:
By:
Sigratee
{Print or type n>rme nere)
Tte-
Date-
LICENSFEE: ATTEST:
By: Gary Knowles
Chair, BCC Clerk of Circuit Court
Date:
Sy

Approved as to form and legal sufficiency
By: , County Avtorney




LICENSE AND HOLD HARMLESS AGREEMENT FOR POLLING PLACE
PRECINCT 13

THIS AGREEMENT is made by TAYLOR COUNTY, a political subdivision of the State of
Florida, the LICENSEE, and Jerkins Building, the LICENSOR, whose address is 1201 Martin Luther King Ave,
Perry, Florida 32348.

The LICENSEE desires to obtain the use of facilities necessary for the Supervisor of Elections to conduct

elections, and the LICENSOR has appropriate facilities for use as a polling place; THEREFORE, the parties agree as
follows:

1. GRANT OF LICENSE Tne LICENSOR hereby grants to the LICENSEE a license to occupy and
use, subject to ail the terms and conditions stated herein, the following described premises, including available
parking aceas and diractly connecting passageways:

lerkinz Building — Conference Room

2. TERM/USE OF PREMISES The above premises may be occupied and used by the LICENSEE as a
polling piace for holding the following elections:
PRESIDENTIAL PREFERENCE PRIMARY ELECTION — MARCH 19, 2024

PRIMIARY ELECTION -~ AUGUST 20, 2024

GENERAL ELECTION - NOVEMBER 5, 2024
The premises are to be occupied and ucad by the LICEMNSEE rom 5:00 s.m. until all election day activities are

completed on the above dates. Also, the LICENSOR agrees to allow the LICENSEE accessibility to the premises on
the day hefore the designated election day and the day after the designated election day for use by the election
team set-up crew in order to set-up and prepare the premises for voting on election day and to remove all election
related equipment the day aiter.

3. PAYMENT For the hcpme granted bv thn Aereement the UCENSEE will pay the LICENSOR § in

s =X u . d
the premises are not used for a partncular aleciicn, no payment shall be made.

4. UTILITIES LITEM3OR zpraes to pay for al! viilities (such as electricity, gas, water, and local
telephaone service} censumed by the LICENSTE during the LICFNSEE’S usa of the premises. This includes use of
available air conditioning or heating equipnient as needed.

5. ZONDITION OF PREMISES The LICENSOR will provide the premises to the LICENSEE in a
clean and uszhlz condition and the LICENSET will be responsible fer any necessary cleanup after use by the
LICENSEE.

€. INDEMNITY/HOLD HARMLESS " During the term of this Agreement the LICENSEE

agrees to zr\demm‘y and kold the LICENSOR harmiless from 2nv damoages, claims, or demands which may arise out

roremizeswitiin—hecont-otof the HCENSEE The HIEENSEE-agrees to-indemnify-and-hold
the LICENSOR harmless from all liability resufting from injury to persons or property due to the LICENSEE’S
negligent use of the premises, to the exie: of its waiver ol soveresgn immunity pursuant to section 768.28, Florida

Statutes.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the pariigs have execured this License and Hold Harmless Agreement for Polling
Place on the date siated below.

LICENSOR: WITHESS:

By:
gratirs
(Print of type name heve]
Title: —_—
Date:

LICENSEE: ATTIST:

By: Gary Knowies
Chair, 3CC Clerk of Circuit Court
Date:

By

Approved! as :c form and legai sufficiency
By: , County Attorney




LICENSE AND HOLD HARMLESS AGREEMENT FOR POLLING PLACE
PRECINCT 14

THIS AGREEMENT is made by TAYLOR COUNTY, a political subdivision of the State of
Florida, the LICENSEE, and Mt. Carmel Baptist Church, the LICENSOR, whose address is 2975 Pisgah Rd,
Perry, Florida 32347.

The LICENSEE desires to obtain the use of facilities necessary for the Supervisor of Elections to conduct

elections, and the LICENSOR has appropriate facilities for use as a polling place; THEREFORE, the parties agree as
follows:

1. GRANT OF LICENSE The LICENSOR hercby grants to the LICENSEE a license to occupy and
use, subject tc all the terms and conditions statad hersin, the following described premises, including available
parking areas and directly connecting passageways:

Mt. Carmel Baptist Church

2. TERM/USE OF PREMISES The above pramises may be occupied and used by the LICENSEE as a
polling place for holding the following elections:
PRESIDENTIAL PREFERENCE PRIMIARY ELECTION - MARCH 19, 2024
PRIMARY ZLECTION - AUGUST 23, 2024
GENERAL ELECTION - NOVEMBER 5, 2024
The premises are tc be occupied and used by the LICENSEE frorr 6:00 a.m. until all election day activities are

completed-en-the-above dates—Alserthe LICENSORagressto-allow-the LICENSEE-aceessibility-to-the-premises-on

the day before the designated election day and the day after the designated election day for use by the election
team set-up crew in order to set-up and prepare the premises for voting on election day and to remove ail election
related equipment the day after.

3. PAYMENT For the license grantad by this Asreement, the LICENSEE will pay the LICENSOR $ in

Kkind.for each.-election the premises.are used. No payment shall be due and-owing untilafter each election and if

the premises are not used for a particular eleciion, no payment shali be made.

4. UTILITIES LICEMSOR agreas to pay for all utilitias {such as electricity, gas, water, and local
telephone service} consumed by the LICENSSE during the UCENSEE'S use of the premises. This includes use of
available air conditioning or lieating equipment as needed.

5. ZONDITION OF PREAMISES The LICENSOR will provide the premises to the LICENSEE in a
clean and usable condition and the LICENSEZ will be responsible for any necessary cleanup after use by the
LICENSEE.

G~ NDEMMITY/HOLD HARMEESS - - - "’*“"’*nrw the tarm of this Agreement the LICENSEE -
agrees to indenwify and hald the LICENSOR harmless from any damzges, claims, or demands which may arise out

of any condition of the premises within the control of the LICENSEE. The LICENSEE agrees to indemnify and hold

the LICENSOR harmiess from all liabitity resulting from injury to persons or property due to the LICENSEE’S
negligent use of tha premises, to the exi2:1: of its waiver of sovareign immunity pursuant to section 768.28, Florida
Statutes.

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the narties have exezuted thic License and Hold Harmless Agreement for Polling
Place on tihe date stawed velew.

LICENSOR: WITHNESS:
By: —
Signature
iPrint or lype name nere}
Title:
Date: —
LICENSEE: ATTEIT:
By: Gary Knowles
Chair, BCC Clervk of Circuit Court
Date:
By:

Approved as te form and legal sufficiency
By: , County Aitorazy .




| TY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS
Cmmty Commfssmn_genda Item

SUBJECT/TITLE': Lease of Forest Capital Hall for Upward Sports

MEETING DATE REQUESTED: | January 2, 2023

Statement of Issue: The board to consider approval of request to renew lease
with First Baptist Church of Perry for the use of Forest
Capital Hall for the term of January 1, 2024 to February 18,
2024.

Recommended Action: Approve lease

Fiscal Impact: $750 revenue from lease

Budgeted Expense: N/A-

Submitted By: LaWanda Pemberton, County Administrator
Contact: 850-838-3500 ext. 6

SUPPLEMENTAL MATERIAL /ISSUE ANALYSIS

History, Facts & Issues: The Upward League has been operating out of Forest
Capital Hall for the past 15 years and serves an average of 150 children per season.

Options:

Attachments: - Request from Scott Bembry, League Director
Lease




£y

UPWARD BASKETBALL SPORTS

FIRST BAPTIST CHURCH OF PERRY
102 N CENTER STREET
PERRY, FLORIDA 32347

(850) 584-7066

Taylor County Board of County Commissioners
Office of the County Administrator

102 E Green St

Perry, FL 32347

Dear Mrs. Pemberton

We }e’s}ﬁéctﬁivreiy requeét apprbval forrthe use of Athe Forest Capiféi Hall to provider
community wide children’s basketball league. This league promotes equal playing
time and welcomes all children ages Kindergarten through Eighth Grade from our

- community—This-will-be-our seveenth-season-and-we have-averaged-around 150-——————

children the last Fifteen years. We have provided positive role models and
leadership while promoting affirmative sportsmanship. Our motto is Play with
Purpose and we work diligently to insure every child and family has a positive and
rewarding experience. We are extremely grateful for your support and we enjoy
working with your staff in utilizing your facility to provide recreation to this age
_group. We are requesting use for practices and games from January 1%, 2024 to
February 18 2024. Thank you for your cooperation and for all you do to make
-this-possible--Please see the attachedsafety-plan. e

Sincerely,

Scott Bembry 850-973-7222
League Director




LEASE OF FOREST CAPITAL HALL

1. This Lease is made and executed this day of 2023, by and between THE
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS OF TAYLOR COUNTY, FLORIDA, Post Office Box 620,
Perry, Florida 32348, hereinafter called Lessor and the FIRST BAPTIST CHURCH, 102 North Center
Street, Perry, Florida 32347, hereinafter called “Lessee”.

2. Lessor hereby leases to Lessee and Lessee hereby rents from Lessor, the following described space:
Forest Capital Hall.

3. The said space is leased for a term from November 27, 2023 to February 18, 2023.
4. The rent shall be $750.00 for the above term.

5. Lessee shall use and occupy the premises for the youth basketball league in Taylor County, Florida.
Lessor represents that the premises may lawfully be used for such purpose.

6. Lessee shall pay rent to Lessor at Lessor’s above-stated address, or at such other place as Lessor may
designate in writing.

7. Lessee shall commit no act of waste and shall take good care of the premises and the fixtures and
appurtenances therein and shall, in the use and occupancy of the premises, conform to all laws, orders,
and regulations of the federal, state and county governments. All improvements made by Lessee to the
- _ premises which are so attached to the premises that cannot be removed without material injury to the
-—— - . -premises; shall-become-the property-of Lessor-upon-installation.- Not later than-the last day-of the term,
Lessee shall, at Lessee’s expense, remove all of Lessee’s personal property and those improvements
made by Lessee which have not become the property of Lessor, including trade fixtures, cabinetwork,
moveable paneling, partitions, and the like; repair all injury done by or in connection with the
installation or removal of such property and improvements; and surrender the premises in as good
condition as they were at the beginning of the term, reasonable wear, damage by fire, the elements,
casualty, or other cause not due to the misuse or neglect of Lessee or Lessee's agents, employees,
excepted. All property of Lessee remaining on the premises after the last day of the term of this lease
shall be conclusively deemed abandoned and may be removed by Lessor.

8. Lessee shall not, without first obtaining the consent of Lessor, make any alterations, additions or
..~ ....improvements in, to.or-on and-about the premises. .. .. . P

9. Lessee shall not do or suffer anything to be done on the premises that will increase the rate of fire
. ___insurance-on the building. The Lessor.shall be the beneficiary of the Lessee’s fire insurance policyon _____ —_—
the building.

10. Lessee shall not, without first notifying the Lessor, abandon the premises, or allow the premises to
become vacant or deserted.

11. Lessee shall not, without first obtaining the written consent of Lessor, assign, mortgage, pledge or
encumber this lease, in whole or in part, or sublet the premises or any part thereof. This covenant shall
be binding on the legal representatives of Lessee, and on every person or agency to whom Lessee’s
interest under this lease passes by operation of law.




12. Lessor may enter the premises at any reasonable time on reasonable notice to Lessee for the
purpose of inspection or the making of repairs, replacement, or additions in, to, on and about the
premises or the building, as Lessor deems necessary or desirable. Such repairs, replacement or additions
to the premises or building shall not materially interrupt daily operations of Forest Capital Hall.

18. No representations or promises shall be binding on the parties hereto except those representations
and promises contained herein or in some future writing signed by the party making such
representations or promises.

14. Lessor covenants that Lessee shall peaceably and quietly have, hold, and enjoy the premises for the
term herein mentioned, subject to the provision of this lease.

15. This Lease shall be interpreted by the laws of the State of Florida, and venue of any lawsuit shall be
exclusively in Taylor County, Florida.

16. Lessee will provide to the Lessor a statement of liability from their insurance carrier and shall
indemnify the Lessor, its agents, employees from any liability as a result of the use of the premises
Forest Capital Hall, and the Lessee shall require each parent or guardian to sign a hold harmless and
waiver of liability for each child that participates in the basketball league.

LESSOR: LESSEE:

-~ ~———BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS— — ~ FIRST BAPTISFCHUREH - —— —- -
OF TAYLOR COUNTY, FLORIDA

STATE OF FLORIDA
COUNTY OF TAYLOR

I hereby certify that on this day personally appeared before me, an officer duly authorized to
administer oaths and take acknowledgments, Lawanda Pemberton, as County Administrator, to me well
known and Kknown to mé to bé the individual described ‘in and who executed the foregoing, and -
acknowledged before me that they executed the same freely and voluntarily for the purpose therein
- —expressed— - o o s e S e e e e e o

Witness my hand and official seal this

day of , 2023.

NOTARY PUBLIC
My Commission Expires:




STATE OF FLORIDA
COUNTY OF TAYLOR

I hereby certify that on this day personally appeared before me, an officer duly authorized to
administer oaths and take acknowledgments, , to me well known and known
to me to be the individual described in and who executed the foregoing, and acknowledged before me
that they executed the same freely and voluntarily for the purpose therein expressed.

Witness my hand and official seal this day of 2023.

NOTARY PUBLIC
My Commission Expires:

e e———— e 4o v = e iAm s D s e e e




TAYLOR COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

County Commission Agenda ltem

SUBJECT/TITLE: | Request for 4-H Funds to be released for the 2023-2024 budget
year to the Taylor County 4-H Foundation.

MEETING DATE REQUESTED: | January 2, 2024

Statement of Issue: To approve the 4-H Foundation Review and release funding
for 2023-2024 budget year of $10,881.00.

Recommended Action: To request for 4-H Funds, received from the County, to be
released to the Taylor County 4-H Foundation ($10,881.00).

Fiscal Impact: $10,881.00 that supports 4-H Programming in Taylor
County.

Budgeted Expense: N/A

Submitted By: Lori Wiggins, Taylor County Extension Director

Contact: 850-838-3508

SUPPLEMENTAL MATERIAL / ISSUE ANALYSIS

History, Facts & Issues: For the Taylor County Board of County Commissioners to
receive and approve the Taylor County 4-H Foundation Review conducted by
Certified Public Accountant, Richard A. Glover, CPA, PA.

Options:

Attachments: see attached Review for the 2022-2023 budget year.




TAYLOR COUNTY 4-H FOUNDATION, INC.
PERRY, FLORIDA
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

SEPTEMBER 30, 2023
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RICHARD A. GLOVER, CPA, PA
Certified Public Accountant
Post Office Box 12612
Tallahassee, Florida 32317

Telephone (850) 510-4300
Fax (850) 422-1044

Independent Accountant’s Review Report

The Board of Directors
Taylor County 4-H Foundation, Inc.
Perry, Florida

We have reviewed the accompanying financial statements of Taylor County 4-H Foundation, Inc. (a nonprofit
organization) which comprise of the statement of financial position as of September 30, 2023, and the related
statements of activities, functional expenses and cash flows for the year then ended, and the related notes to
the financial statements. A review includes primarily applying analytical procedures to management’s
financial data and making inquiries of the Organization’s management. A review is substantially less in scope
than an audit, the objective of which is the expression of an opinion regarding the financial statements as a
whole. Accordingly, we do not express such an opinion.

Management’s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial statements in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America; this includes the
design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant to the preparation and fair presentation
of financial statements that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Accountant’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to conduct the review in accordance with Statements on Standards for Accounting and
Review Services promulgated by the Accounting and Review Services Committee of the AICPA. Those
standards require us to perform procedures to obtain limited assurance as a basis for reporting whether we are
aware of any material modifications that should be made to the financial statements for them to be in
accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America. We believe that the
results of our procedures provide a reasonable basis for our conclusion.



Accountant’s Conclusion

Based on our review, we are not aware of any material modifications that should be made to the
accompanying financial statements in order for them to be in accordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America.

Richard A. Glover, CPA, PA

Richard A. Glover, CPA, PA
Tallahassee, Florida
December 20, 2023



TAYLOR COUNTY 4-H FOUNDATION, INC.

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
SEPTEMBER 30, 2023

ASSETS

CURRENT ASSETS

Cash

Investments

Total Current Assets
TOTAL ASSETS
LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

CURRENT LIABILITIES

Unearned Revenue — Backpack Fund
Total Current Liabilities
NET ASSETS
Temporarily Restricted
TOTAL LIABILITIES AND NET ASSETS

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.

5

$ 46,312
54.300

100,612
3 100,612

5 28,658
28,658

71.954




TAYLOR COUNTY 4-H FOUNDATION, INC.
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2023

TEMPORARILY RESTRICTED SUPPORT & REVENUE

Backpack Program $ 0
Horse & Livestock 5,000
Other Donations & Revenue 852
Youth Camps and Clubs 15,862
Food Nutrition Programming 0
Taylor County Board Donation 10,881
Unrealized Gains (Losses) On Investments 7.798
Total Support and Revenue 40,393
EXPENSES
Program Services
County Funds 18,450
Youth Camps 20,848
Family and Consumer Science 0
Other Program Expenses 9.347
Total Expenses 48.645
Change in Temporarily Restricted Net Assets (8,252)
Temporarily Restricted Net Assets, Beginning of Year 80,206
Temporarily Restricted Net Assets, End of Year 3 71,954

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.




TAYLOR COUNTY 4-H FOUNDATION, INC.
STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2023

Cash Flows From Operating Activities
Increase (Decrease) in Net Assets

Adjustments to Reconcile Change:
Unrealized Gain on Investments
Change in Unearned Revenue

Investment Withdrawal — Scholarship Funding
Net Cash Used in Operating Activities

Net Decrease in Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and Cash Equivalents at Beginning of Year
Cash and Cash Equivalents at End of Year

$ (8,252)

(7,798)
961
1.000
(14.089)
(14,089)
60.401
$ 46312

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



TAYLOR COUNTY 4-H FOUNDATION, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2023
NOTE 1 - SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

Nature of the Organization

The Taylor County 4-H Foundation, Inc. (Organization) was organized to extend agricultural education to
rural youth by organizing boys and girls clubs and through “learning by doing”.

Basis of Accounting

The Organization’s books are maintained on the accrual basis of accounting.

Basis of Presentation

In accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America, the
Organization is required to report information regarding its financial position and activities according to
three classes of net assets: unrestricted net assets, temporarily restricted net assets, and permanently
restricted assets.

Cash Equivalents

The Organization considers all unrestricted highly liquid investments with an original maturity of three
months or less to be cash equivalents.

Income Taxes

The Organization is exempt from state and federal income taxes under Section 501(c)(3) of the Internal
Revenue Code. Therefore, no provision for income taxes has been recorded.

A Form 990, Return of Organization Exempt From Income Tax, is filed each year.

Property and Equipment

Property and equipment are recorded at cost. Contributed assets are reported at fair market value as of the
date received. Additions, improvement, and other capital outlays that exceed a threshold of $500 and which
significantly extend the useful life of the asset are capitalized. All property and equipment are depreciated
using the straight-line method over the estimated lives of the assets.



TAYLOR COUNTY 4-H FOUNDATION, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2023

Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the
United States of America requires management to make estimates and assumption that affect certain
reported amounts and disclosures. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

Donated Materials and Services
Donated materials and equipment are reflected as contributions in the accompanying statements at their
estimated values at date of receipt. No amounts have been reflected in the statement for donated services, as

no objective basis is available to measure the value of such services; however, a substantial number of
volunteers have donated significant amounts of their time in the Organization’s program services.

Investments

The Organization carries investments in marketable securities with readily determinable fair values and all
investments in debt securities at their fair values in the statement of financial position. Unrealized gains and
losses are included in the change in net assets in the accompanying statement of activities.

The origin of the investments were a donation from Taylor County Community Friends upon the dissolution
of the Not-For-Profit organization.

NOTE 2 - DESIGNATED CURRENT ASSETS

The Organization’s operating funds are listed as cash in the current assets and are encumbered funds for
current 4H programming and backpack programming. The funds are designated, as follows:

Current 4H Programming Funds $ 17,654
Backpack Programming Funds 28.658

Total Cash 46,312



TAYLOR COUNTY 4-H FOUNDATION, INC.
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
FOR THE YEAR ENDED SEPTEMBER 30, 2023

NOTE 3 -FAIR VALUE INSTRUMENTS

The fair value measurements and levels within the fair value hierarchy of these measurements for the
assets reported at fair value on a recurring basis at September 30, 2023 are as follows:

Fair Significant Observable
Description Value Inputs Level 1
Mutual Funds 54.3 $54,300

NOTE 4 — RESTRICTED AND UNRESTRICTED REVENUE

Donations or grants that are not specified by the donor on how or where the Organization is to use the
given revenue is considered to be unrestricted. The contribution will appear on the statement of activities
as unrestricted revenue and will appear on the statement of financial position as an asset and will
increase unrestricted net assets. Being unrestricted, the Organization can then use the donation for
whatever purpose it sees fit to achieve its stated mission.

Donations or grants earmarked for a specific purpose, such as a specific program operating within the
Organization is considered to be temporarily restricted. In these cases, the donation is recorded as
temporarily restricted revenues on the statement of activities and will appear as an asset on the statement
of financial position. These donations are temporarily restricted because they have a specific purpose for
which they must be used within an expected amount of time.

10



TAYLOR COUNTY BOARD OF COMMISSIONERS

County Commission — Consent Agenda Item

SUBJECT/TITLE:

Request to approve and sign the Taylor County Artificial
Reef Construction Grant Agreement FWC No. 23053 and
serve as Fiscal Agent (Reimbursement Grant).

Meeting Date: January 2, 2024

Statement of Issue: Approve and sign the Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission (FWC) grant
Agreement No. 23055 for the Taylor County Artificial Reef MONITORING, for the amount of

$10,000.00 for fiscal year 2023-2024 and serve as Fiscal Agent (Reimbursement Grant).

Recommendation: Approve and sign the FWC Grant Agreement.

Fiscal Impact: $ 10,000 Budgeted Expense: Yes | | No N/A [ ]
Submitted By: UF Taylor County Extension

Contact: Victor Blanco

SUPPLEMENTAL MATERIAL /ISSUE ANALYSIS

History, Facts & Issues: Several deployments of artificial reef materials have occurred off

the Taylor County coastline (Buckeye reef and Steinhatchee reef). Artificial reefs increase

fish habitat and populations, as well as the species diversity of important sportfish.

Taylor County has been very supportive of artificial reefs due to the positive economic and

environmental returns and monitoring is key to collect baseline info to promote the use of our

artificial reefs for fishing or diving. We are asking the Board to approve and sign the FWC Grant.

Contract to perform a reef monitoring in Buckeye in 2024 and serve as Fiscal Agent
(Reimbursement Grant).

Options: 1. Approve and get the grant funds and improve Taylor County economy

Deny approval

A

Attachments: 1 Agreement + Attachments




RECIPIENT/SUBRECIPIENT AGREEMENT
STATE OF FLORIDA
FLORIDA FISH AND WILDLIFE CONSERVATION COMMISSION
FWC Agreement #23055

Federal Grant Information

CFDA Title(s): N/A CFDA No(s).: N/A

Name of Federal Agency(s): N/A

Federal Award No(s): N/A Federal Award Year(s): N/A

Federal Award Name(s): N/A

State Grant Information

CSFA Title(s).: Florida Artificial Reef Program CSFA No(s). : 77-007

State Award No(s).: FWC-23055 State Award Year(s): 2023-2024

State Award Name(s): Taylor County Artificial Reef Monitoring 2023-2024

This Agreement is entered into by and between the Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission, whose
address is 620 South Meridian Street, Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1600, hereafter “Commission” or “FWC,” and
Taylor County Board of County Commissioners, #59-6000879, whose address is 201 East Green St, Perry, FL
32347, the Recipient/Subrecipient, hereinafter “Recipient”, collectively, “Parties”.

INTRODUCTORY CLAUSES

WHEREAS, Commission and Recipient intend to partner together to assess the material condition and fish
assemblages on artificial reefs within the Buckeye Reef permitted area;

WHEREAS, such benefits are for the ultimate good of the State of Florida, its resources, wildlife, and public
welfare.

TERMS OF THE AGREEMENT

The Commission and the Recipient, for the considerations stated in this Agreement, agree as follows:

Section 1. PROJECT DESCRIPTION.

The Recipient shall provide the services and perform the specific responsibilities and obligations, as set forth in
the Scope of Work, attached hereto as Attachment A, which specifically identifies project tasks and accompanying
deliverables. These deliverables must be submitted and approved by the Commission prior to any payment. The
Commission will not accept any deliverable that does not comply with the specified required minimum level of




FWC Agreement No. #23055

service to be performed and the criteria for evaluating the successful completion of each deliverable. If this
Agreement is the result of Recipient responses to the Commission’s request for competitive or other grant
proposals, the Recipient’s response is hereby incorporated by reference.

Section 2. PERFORMANCE.

The Recipient shall perform the activities described in Attachment A in a proper and satisfactory manner. Unless
otherwise provided for in Attachment A, any and all equipment, products or materials necessary or appropriate to
perform under this Agreement shall be supplied by the Recipient. The Recipient shall obtain all necessary local,
state, and federal authorizations necessary to complete this project, and the Recipient shall be licensed as
necessary to perform under this Agreement as may be required by law, rule, or regulation; the Recipient shall
provide evidence of such compliance to the Commission upon request. The Recipient shall procure all supplies
and pay all charges, fees, taxes and incidentals that may be required for the completion of this Agreement. By
acceptance of this Agreement, the Recipient warrants that it has the capability in all respects to fully perform the
requirements and the integrity and reliability that will assure good-faith performance as a responsible Recipient.
The Recipient shall immediately notify the Commission’s Grant Manager in writing if its ability to perform under
the Agreement is compromised in any manner during the term of the Agreement. The Commission shall take
appropriate action, including potential termination of this Agreement, in the event the Recipient’s ability to
perform under this Agreement becomes compromised.

Section 3. AGREEMENT PERIOD.

A. Agreement Period and Commission’s Limited Obligation to Pay.

The Agreement shall be effective upon execution by the last Party to sign and shall remain in effect through
12/31/2024.

However, if this Agreement is made pursuant to a grant award as authorized by Rule 68-1.003, F.A.C., the
referenced grant programs may execute Agreements with a retroactive start date of no more than sixty (60)
days, provided that approval is granted from the Executive Director or his/her designee and that it is in the
best interest of the Commission and State to do so. For this Agreement, the retroactive start date was not
approved. The Commission’s Grant Manager shall confirm the specific start date of the Agreement by
written notice to the Recipient. The Recipient shall not be eligible for reimbursement or compensation for
grant activities performed prior to the start date of this Agreement nor after the end date of the Agreement.
For this Agreement, preaward costs are not eligible for reimbursement. If necessary, by mutual agreement
as evidenced in writing and lawfully executed by the Parties, an Amendment to this Agreement may be
executed to lengthen the Agreement period.

B. Extension.

The Commission may extend this Agreement upon agreement of both Parties through an Amendment,
provided the funding source permits additional time prior to expiration of funding.

Section 4. COMPENSATION AND PAYMENTS.

A. Compensation.

As consideration for the services rendered by the Recipient under the terms of this Agreement, the
Commission shall pay the Recipient on a cost reimbursement basis in an amount not to exceed $10,000.00.

Recipient/Subrecipient Agreement Last Revised: 3.20.2023 Page 2 of 29



FWC Agreement No. #23055

B. Payments.

The Commission shall pay the Recipient for satisfactory performance of the tasks identified in Attachment
A as evidenced by the completed deliverables, upon submission of invoices, accompanied by supporting
documentation sufficient to justify invoiced expenses or fees, and after acceptance of services and
deliverables in writing by the Commission’s Grant Manager. Unless otherwise specified in Attachment A,
invoices shall be due monthly, commencing from the start date of this Agreement. Invoices must be legible
and must clearly reflect the Deliverables that were provided in accordance with the terms of the Agreement
for the invoice period. Unless otherwise specified in Attachment A, a final invoice shall be submitted to the
Commission no later than forty-five (45) days following the expiration date of this Agreement to assure the
availability of funds for payment. Further, pursuant to Section 215.971(1)(d), F.S., the Commission may
only pay the Recipient for allowable costs resulting from obligations incurred during the Agreement period.

C. Invoices.

Each invoice shall include the Commission Agreement Number and the Recipient’s Federal Employer
Identification (FEID) Number. Invoices, with supporting documentation, may be submitted electronically to
the attention of the Commission’s Grant Manager. If submitting hard copies, an original and two (2) copies
of the invoice, plus all supporting documentation, shall be submitted. All bills for amounts due under this
Agreement shall be submitted in detail sufficient for a proper pre-audit and post-audit thereof. Recipient
acknowledges that the Commission’s Grant Manager shall reject invoices lacking documentation necessary
to justify invoiced expenses.

D. Match

If this Agreement is made pursuant to a grant award as authorized by Rule 68-1.003, F.A.C., the Recipient
is not required to contribute non-federal match towards this Agreement. If applicable, details regarding
specific match requirements are included in Attachment A.

E. State Obligation to Pay.

The State of Florida's performance and obligation to pay under this Agreement is contingent upon an
annual appropriation and authorization to spend by the Legislature. The Parties hereto understand that this
Agreement is not a commitment to future appropriations but is subject to appropriation and authority to
spend provided by the Legislature. The Commission shall be the final authority as to the availability of
funds for this Agreement, and as to what constitutes an “annual appropriation” of funds to complete this
Agreement. If such funds are not appropriated or available for the Agreement purpose, such event will not
constitute a default on behalf of the Commission or the State. The Commission’s Grant Manager shall
notify the Recipient in writing at the earliest possible time if funds are not appropriated or available.

F. Non-Competitive Procurement and Rate of Payment.

Section 216.3475, F.S., requires that under non-competitive procurements, a Recipient may not receive a
rate of payment in excess of the competitive prevailing rate for those services unless expressly authorized
in the General Appropriations Act. If applicable, Recipient warrants, by execution of this Agreement, that
the amount of non-competitive compensation provided in this Agreement is in compliance with Section
216.3475, F.S.

G. Cost Reimbursement

If the Compensation section indicates this is a cost reimbursement Agreement, the Recipient shall be paid
on a cost reimbursement basis for all eligible Project costs upon the completion, submittal, and approval of
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each deliverable identified in Attachment A. To be eligible for reimbursement, costs must follow the
requirements of Section 215.971, F.S. and must also be in compliance with other laws, rules, and
regulations applicable to expenditures of State funds, including, but not limited to, the Reference Guide for

State Expenditures.

Invoices submitted for cost reimbursement must be itemized by expenditure category as outlined in the
approved Agreement budget. Additionally, the invoice must evidence the completion of all tasks required to
be performed for the deliverable and must show that the Recipient met the minimum performance standards
established in the Agreement. The Commission is required to maintain detailed supporting documentation
and to make it available for audit purposes. By submission of the payment request, the Commission is
certifying that the detailed documentation to support each item on the itemized invoice is on file at the
agency and is available for audit.

Documentation for each amount for which reimbursement is being claimed must indicate that the item has
been paid. Check numbers may be provided in lieu of copies of actual checks. Each piece of documentation
should clearly reflect the dates of service. Only expenditures for the categories in the approved Agreement
budget may be reimbursed. These expenditures must be allowable (pursuant to law) and directly related to
the services being provided. The Commission may require more detailed documentation as deemed
appropriate to satisfy that the terms of the Agreement have been met.

Listed below are types and examples of their supporting documentation:

i.  Salaries: Timesheets that support the hours worked on the project or activity must be kept. A
payroll register or similar documentation should be submitted and maintained. The payroll register
should show gross salary charges, fringe benefits, other deductions and net pay. If an individual for
whom reimbursement is being claimed is paid by the hour, a document reflecting the hours worked
times the rate of pay will be acceptable.

ii,  Tuition: If the Commission determines tuition, stipends, and/or waivers are allowable costs, the
payments must result from obligations incurred during the specified Agreement period.
Documentation must be provided to show compliance with 215.971, F.S. Examples include but are
not limited to keeping timesheets/time and effort reports/logs that support the hours worked on the
project or activity. If an individual for whom tuition, stipends and/or waivers are being claimed are
paid by the hour, a document reflecting the hours worked times the rate of pay will be acceptable.

iii.  Fringe Benefits: Supported by invoices showing the amount paid on behalf of the employee (e.g.,
insurance premiums paid). If the Agreement specifically states that fringe benefits will be based on
a specified percentage rather than the actual cost of fringe benefits, then the calculation for the
fringe benefits amount must be shown.

a. Exception: Governmental entities are not required to provide check numbers or copies of
checks for fringe benefits.

iv.  Travel: To the extent the Commission determines travel is an allowable cost, reimbursement for
travel must be in accordance with Section 112.061, Florida Statutes, which includes submission of
the claim on the approved State travel voucher along with supporting receipts and invoices.

v. Other Direct Costs: To the extent the Commission determines other direct costs are allowable,
reimbursement will be made based on paid invoices/receipts and proof of payment processing
(cancelled/processed checks and bank statements).
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vi.  In-House Charges: Charges which may be of an internal nature (e.g., postage, copies, etc.) may be
reimbursed on a usage log which shows the units times the rate being charged. The rates must be
reasonable.

vii.  Indirect Costs: To the extent the Commission determines that indirect costs are allowable, and the
Agreement specifies that indirect costs will be paid based on a specified rate, then the calculation
should be provided in the Agreement’s budget breakdown. Indirect costs must be in the approved
Agreement budget and the Recipient must be able to demonstrate that the costs are not duplicated
elsewhere as direct costs. All indirect cost rates must be evaluated for reasonableness and for
allowability and must be allocated consistently.

For cost reimbursement Agreements with another State agency (including State universities):

In lieu of the detailed documentation described above, alternative documentation may be submitted to
substantiate the costs requested to be reimbursed. This alternative documentation may be in the form of
FLAIR reports or other reports containing sufficient detail.

H. Time Limits for Payment of Invoices.

Payments shall be made in accordance with Sections 215.422 and 287.0585, F.S., which govern time limits
for payment of invoices. Section 215.422, F.S. provides that agencies have five (5) working days to inspect
and approve Deliverables, unless Attachment A specifies otherwise. If payment is not available within forty
(40) days, measured from the latter of the date the invoice is received or the Deliverables are received,
inspected and approved, a separate interest penalty set by the Department of Financial Services pursuant to
Section 55.03(1), F.S., will be due and payable in addition to the invoice amount. Invoices returned to a
Recipient due to preparation errors will result in a payment delay. Invoice payment requirements do not
start until a properly completed invoice is provided to the agency.

L. Electronic Funds Transfer.

Recipient agrees to enroll in Electronic Funds Transfer (EFT), offered by the State’s Chief Financial
Officer, within thirty (30) days of the date the last Party has signed this Agreement. Copies of the
Authorization form and a sample blank enrollment letter can be found on the vendor instruction page at:
https://www.myfloridacfo.com/division/aa/vendors. Questions should be directed to the State of Florida’s
EFT Section at (850) 413-5517. Once enrolled, invoice payments will be made by EFT.

J. Vendor Ombudsman.

A Vendor Ombudsman, whose duties include acting as an advocate for vendors who may be experiencing
problems in obtaining timely payment(s) from a State agency, may be contacted at (850) 413-5516 or by
calling the Chief Financial Officer’s Hotline, (800) 342-2762.

Section 5. RETURN OR RECOUPMENT OF FUNDS

A. Unobligated Funds.

Pursuant to Section 215.971(1)(d)-(e), F.S., the Commission may only pay the Recipient for allowable costs
resulting from obligations incurred during the Agreement period, and any balance of unobligated funds that
has been advanced or paid must be refunded to the Commission. Any funds paid in excess of the amount to
which the Recipient is entitled under the terms and conditions of the Agreement must be refunded to the
Commission as well.
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B. Overpayments to Recipient.

Pursuant to Section 215.971(1)(f), F.S., any funds paid in excess of the amount to which the Recipient is
entitled under the terms and conditions of the Agreement must be refunded to the Commission. In the event
the Recipient or its independent auditor discovers that overpayment has been made, the Recipient shall
repay said overpayment within forty (40) calendar days without prior notification from the Commission. In
the event the Commission first discovers an overpayment has been made, the Commission will notify the
Recipient in writing. Should repayment not be made in a timely manner, the Commission shall be entitled
to charge interest at the lawful rate of interest established pursuant to Section 55.03(1), F.S., on the
outstanding balance beginning forty (40) calendar days after the date of notification or discovery. Refunds
should be sent to the Commission’s Grant Manager and made payable to the “Florida Fish and Wildlife
Conservation Commission.”

C. Additional Costs or Monetary Loss Resulting from Recipient Non-Compliance.

If the Recipient’s non-compliance with any provision of the Agreement results in additional cost or
monetary loss to the Commission or the State of Florida to the extent allowed by Florida Law, the
Commission can recoup that cost or loss from monies owed to the Recipient under this Agreement or any
other agreement between Recipient and the Commission. In the event the discovery of this cost or loss
arises when no monies are available under this Agreement or any other agreement between the Recipient
and the Commission, the Recipient will repay such cost or loss in full to the Commission within thirty (30)
days of the date of notice of the amount owed, unless the Commission agrees, in writing, to an alternative
timeframe. If the Recipient is unable to repay any cost or loss to the Commission, the Commission shall
utilize remedies available by law and may notify the State of Florida, Department of Financial Services,
pursuant to Section 17.0415, F.S.

Section 6. COMMISSION EXEMPT FROM TAXES, PROPERTY EXEMPT FROM LIEN.

A. Commission Exempt from Taxes.

The Recipient recognizes that the State of Florida, by virtue of its sovereignty, is not required to pay any
taxes on the services or goods purchased under the terms of this Agreement. The Recipient is placed on
notice that this exemption generally does not apply to nongovernmental entity recipients, subrecipients,
contractors, or subcontractors. Any questions regarding this tax exemption should be addressed to the
Commission’s Grant Manager.

B. Property Exempt from Lien.
If the Agreement involves the improvement of real property titled to the State of Florida, then the following
paragraph applies:

The Recipient acknowledges that Property being improved is titled to the State of Florida and is not
subject to lien of any kind for any reason. The Recipient shall include notice of such exemptions in any
subcontracts and purchase orders issued hereunder.

Section 7. MONITORING.

The Commission’s Grant Manager shall actively monitor the Recipient’s performance and compliance with the
terms of this Agreement. The Commission reserves the right for any Commission staff to make scheduled or
unscheduled, announced or unannounced monitoring visits. Specific State and Federal monitoring terms and
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conditions are found in the Requirements of the Federal and Florida Single Audit Acts, Attachment B. Monitoring
terms, conditions, and schedules may be included in Attachment A.

Section 8. TERMINATION.

A. Commission Unilateral Termination.

The Commission may unilaterally terminate this Agreement for convenience by providing the Recipient
with thirty (30) calendar days of written notice of its intent to terminate. The Recipient shall not be entitled
to recover any cancellation charges or lost profits. The Recipient may request termination of the Agreement
for convenience.

B. Termination — Fraud or Willful Misconduct.

This Agreement shall terminate immediately in the event of fraud or willful misconduct. In the event of
such termination, the Commission shall provide the Recipient with written notice of termination.

C. Termination — Funds Unavailability.

In the event funds to finance this Agreement become unavailable or if federal or state funds upon which
this Agreement is dependent are withdrawn or redirected, the Commission may terminate this Agreement
upon no less than twenty-four (24) hours’ notice in writing to the Recipient. Said notice shall be delivered
by certified mail, return receipt requested or in person with proof of delivery. The Commission shall be the
final authority as to the availability of funds and will not reallocate funds appropriated for this Agreement
to another program thus causing “lack of funds.” In the event of termination of this Agreement under this
provision, the Recipient will be compensated for any work satisfactorily completed and any non-
cancellable obligations properly incurred prior to notification of termination.

D. Termination — Other.

The Commission may terminate this Contract if the Recipient fails to: 1.) comply with all terms and
conditions of this Agreement; 2.) produce each deliverable within the time specified by the Agreement or
extension; 3.) maintain adequate progress, thus endangering the performance of the Agreement; or, 4.)
abide by any statutory, regulatory, or licensing requirement. The Commission shall give written notice to
the Recipient of its intent to terminate the Agreement for cause. In the notice, the Commission shall provide
an opportunity for the Recipient to correct the deficiency or provide a corrective action plan to correct the
deficiency for the Commission, in its sole determination, to approve or disapprove. If no corrective action
plan is submitted and approved, the Recipient shall cure the deficiencies cited by the Commission in its
notice within fifteen (15) calendar days of receipt of such notice. If the Recipient does not cure the
deficiencies to the Commission’s satisfaction within the fifteen (15) calendar days, or within the time
proscribed in an approved corrective action plan if one was provided, the Agreement will be terminated for
cause. At that time, the Commission will send a second notice to the Recipient noting that this Agreement is
being terminated for cause upon receipt of the notice and documenting the reasons this Agreement is being
terminated. The Commission reserves the right in its sole discretion, to determine if the Recipient’s
deficiencies are legally excusable, or to extend the time to cure the deficiencies in writing. The Recipient’s
damages for termination for cause shall be limited to the cost of work actually performed and approved by
the Commission. Section 287.1351, F.S., governs the procedure and consequences for default. The rights
and remedies of the Commission in this clause are in addition to any other rights and remedies provided by
law or under the Agreement. Recipient shall not be entitled to recover any cancellation charges.
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E. Recipient Discontinuation of Activities upon Termination Notice.

Upon receipt of notice of termination, the Recipient shall, unless the notice directs otherwise, immediately
discontinue all activities authorized hereunder. Upon termination of this Agreement, the Recipient shall
promptly render to the Commission all property belonging to the Commission. For the purposes of this
section, property belonging to the Commission shall include, but shall not be limited to, all books and
records kept on behalf of the Commission.

Section 9. REMEDIES.

A. Financial Consequences.

In accordance with Sections 215.971(1)(2) & (b), F.S., Attachment A contains clearly established tasks in
quantifiable units of deliverables that must be received and accepted in writing by the agency before
payment. Each deliverable specifies the required minimum level of service to be performed and the criteria
for evaluating the successful completion of each deliverable. If the Recipient fails to produce each
deliverable within the time frame specified by Attachment A, the budget amount allocated for that
deliverable will be reduced by ten percent (10%) from the Recipient’s payment, unless otherwise modified
by Attachment A.

In addition, pursuant to Section 215.971(1)(c), the Commission shall apply any additional financial
consequences as listed below or as identified in Attachment A.

i.  Temporarily withhold payments pending correction of the deficiency by the Contractor.
ii. = Reduction of payment if correction of deficiency is not made by the Contractor.
ili.  Disallow all or part of the cost of the activity or action not in compliance.
iv.  Wholly or partly suspend or terminate this agreement.
v.  Withhold future awards for the FWC projects.
vi.  Take other remedies that may be legally available.

B. Cumulative Remedies.

The rights and remedies of the Commission during the Agreement period are in addition to any other rights
and remedies provided by law or under the Contract.

Section 10. NOTICES AND CORRESPONDENCE.

Any and all notices shall be delivered to the individuals identified below. In the event that either Party designates
a different Grant Manager after the execution of this Agreement, the Party will provide written notice of the
name, address, zip code, telephone, and email address of the newest Grant Manager, or an individual authorized to
receive notice on behalf of that Party, to all other Parties as soon as possible, but not later than five (5) business
days after the new Grant Manager has been named. Designating a new Grant Manager shall not require a formal
Amendment to the Agreement.
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COMMISSION GRANT MANAGER RECIPIENT GRANT MANAGER CONTACT
CONTACT INFORMATION: INFORMATION:
Carolyn Kalinowski Victor Blanco
Biological Scientist IV Marine and Natural Resources Extension Agent
Florida Fish and Wildlife Sea Grant UF/IFAS Extension — Taylor County
1875 Orange Ave East 203 Forest Park Dr.
Tallahassee, FL 32311 Perry, FL 32348
850-617-9619 850-838-3508
Carolyn.kalinowski@myfwc.com victorblancomar@ufl.edu

Section 11. AMENDMENT.

A. Waiver or Modification.

No waiver or modification of this Agreement or of any covenant, condition, or limitation herein contained
shall be valid unless in writing and lawfully executed by the Parties.

B. Change Orders.

The Commission may, at any time, by written order, make a change to this Agreement. Such changes are
subject to the mutual agreement of both Parties as evidenced in writing. Any change which causes an
increase or decrease in the Recipient’s cost or time shall require an Amendment. Minor changes, such as
those updating a Party’s contact information, may be accomplished by a Modification.

C. Renegotiation upon Change in Law or Regulations.

The Parties agree to renegotiate this Agreement if federal and/or state revisions of any applicable laws or
regulations make changes in the Agreement necessary.

Section 12. PROPERTY RIGHTS.

If this Agreement includes Federal funds, the provisions of Sections 200.310-200.316, Office of Management and
Budget (OMB) Uniform Guidance (2 CFR 200), and any language addressing Federal rights, apply.

A. Intellectual and Other Intangible Property.

i.

ii.

iii.

Recipient’s Preexisting Intellectual Property (Proprietary) Rights. Unless specifically addressed
in Attachment A, intellectual and other intangible property rights to the Recipient’s preexisting
property will remain with the Recipient.

Proceeds Related to Intellectual Property Rights. Proceeds derived from the sale, licensing,
marketing or other authorization related to any intellectual and other intangible property right
created or otherwise developed by the Recipient under this Agreement for the Commission shall be
handled in the manner specified by the applicable Florida State Statute and/or Federal program
requirements.

Commission Intellectual Property Rights. Where activities supported by this Agreement produce
original writing, sound recordings, pictorial reproductions, drawings or other graphic representations
and works of any similar nature, the Commission and the State of Florida have the unlimited,
royalty-free, nonexclusive, irrevocable right to use, duplicate and disclose such materials in whole or
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in part, in any manner, for any purpose whatsoever and to have others acting on behalf of the
Commission to do so. If this Agreement is supported by Federal funds, the Federal awarding agency
reserves a royalty-free, nonexclusive and irrevocable right to reproduce, publish, or otherwise use
the work for federal purposes, and to authorize others to do so.

B. Purchase or Improvement of Real Property.

This Agreement is not for the purchase or improvement of real property, therefore, the following terms and
conditions do not apply.

i.  Federal Funds. Any Federal funds provided for the purchase of or improvements to real property
are subject to the Property Standards of Sections 200.310 - 200.316, and 200.329, OMB Uniform
Guidance (2 CFR 200), as amended.

ii.  Title. If this Agreement is supported by state funds, the Recipient shall comply with Section
287.05805, F.S. This section requires the Recipient to grant a security interest in the property to the
State of Florida, the type and details of which are provided for in Attachment A. Title to state-owned
real property remains vested in the state. Title to federally owned real property remains vested in the
Federal government in accordance with the provisions of Section 200.312, OMB Uniform Guidance
(2 CFR 200), as amended.

iii. Use. Federally owned real property will be used for the originally authorized purpose as long as
needed for that purpose in accordance with Section 200.311, OMB Uniform Guidance (2 CFR 200).
State-owned real property will be used as provided in Attachment A.

C. Non-Expendable Property.

i. Non-Expendable Property Defined. For the requirements of this section of the Agreement, “non-
expendable property” is the same as “property” as defined in Section 273.02, F.S. (equipment,
fixtures, and other tangible personal property of a non-consumable and non-expendable nature, with
a value or cost of $5,000.00 or more, and a normal expected life of one (1) year or more; hardback-
covered bound books that are circulated to students or the general public, with a value or cost of
$25.00 or more; and uncirculated hardback-covered bound books, with a value or cost of $250.00 or
more).

ii.  Title to Non-Expendable Property. Title (ownership) to all non-expendable property acquired with
funds from this Agreement shall be vested in the Commission and said property shall be transferred
to the Commission upon completion or termination of the Agreement unless otherwise authorized in
writing by the Commission or unless otherwise specifically provided for in Attachment A.

D. Equipment and Supplies

i.  Title - Equipment. Title to equipment acquired under a Federal award will vest upon acquisition in
the non-Federal entity in accordance with Sections 200.313 and 200.314, OMB Uniform Guidance
(2 CFR 200).

ii.  Title — Supplies. Title to supplies will vest in the non-Federal entity upon acquisition. Unused
supplies exceeding $5,000.00 in total aggregate value upon termination or completion of the project
or program are subject to Section 200.314, OMB Uniform Guidance.

iii.  Use— Equipment. Equipment must be used by the non-Federal entity in the program or project for
which it was acquired as long as needed.
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Section 13. RELATIONSHIP OF THE PARTIES.
A. Conflict of Interest.

The Recipient covenants that it presently has no interest and shall not acquire any interest that would
conflict in any manner or degree with the performance of services required. Each Party hereto covenants
that there is no conflict of interest or any other prohibited relationship between the Recipient and the
Commission.

B. Recipient Training Qualifications.

The Recipient agrees that all Recipient employees, subrecipients, subcontractors, or agents performing
work under the Agreement shall be properly trained technicians who meet or exceed any specified training
qualifications. Upon request, Recipient shall furnish a copy of technical certification or other proof of
qualification.

C. Commission Security.

All employees, subrecipients, subcontractors, or agents performing work under the Agreement must comply
with all security and administrative requirements of the Commission. The Commission may conduct, and
the Recipient shall cooperate in, a security background check or otherwise assess any employee,
subcontractor, or agent furnished by the Recipient. The Commission may refuse access to, or require
replacement of, any personnel for cause, including, but not limited to, technical or training qualifications,
quality of work, change in security status, or non-compliance with the Commission’s other requirements.
Such refusal shall not relieve Recipient of its obligation to perform all work in compliance with the
Agreement. The Commission, in coordination with the Recipient, may reject and bar from any facility for
cause any of Recipient’s employees, subcontractors, or agents.

D. Commission Rights to Assign or Transfer.

The Recipient agrees that the State of Florida shall at all times be entitled to assign or transfer its rights,
duties, or obligations under this Agreement to another governmental agency in the State of Florida, upon
giving prior written notice to the Recipient.

E. Commission Rights to Undertake or Award ‘Supplemental Contracts.

The Recipient agrees that the Commission may undertake or award supplemental agreements for work
related to the Agreement. The Recipient and its subcontractors shall cooperate with such other Recipients
and the Commission in all such cases.

Section 14. SUBCONTRACTS.

The Recipient is not permitted to subcontract any work under this Agreement, and therefore, the following
terms and conditions do not apply.

A. Authority.

The Recipient shall ensure, and provide assurances to the Commission upon request, that any subrecipient
or subcontractor selected for work under this Agreement has the necessary qualifications and abilities to
perform in accordance with the terms and conditions of this Agreement. The Recipient must provide the
Commission with the names of any subrecipient or subcontractor considered for work under this
Agreement; the Commission reserves the right to reject any subrecipient or subcontractor. The Recipient
agrees to be responsible for all work performed and all expenses incurred with the project. Any subrecipient
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or subcontract arrangements must be evidenced by a written document available to the Commission upon
request. The Recipient further agrees that the Commission shall not be liable to any subrecipient or
subcontractor for any expenses or liabilities incurred under the subrecipient agreement or subcontract. The
Recipient, at its expense, will defend the Commission against such claims. The following provisions apply
in addition to any terms and conditions included in Attachment A.

B. Recipient Payments to Subcontractor or Subrecipient.

If subcontracting is permitted pursuant to Paragraph A, above, Recipient agrees to make payments to the
subcontractor within seven (7) working days after receipt of full or partial payments from the Commission
in accordance with Section 287.0585, F.S., unless otherwise stated in the agreement between the Recipient
and subcontractor. Recipient’s failure to pay its subcontractors within seven (7) working days will result in
a penalty charged against the Recipient and paid to the subcontractor in the amount of one-half of one
percent (0.50%) of the amount due per day from the expiration of the period allowed herein for payment.
Such penalty shall be in addition to actual payments owed and shall not exceed fifteen percent (15%) of the
outstanding balance due.

If entering a subrecipient agreement is permitted pursuant to Paragraph A above, Recipient agrees to make
payments to the subrecipient for satisfactory performance of the tasks/deliverables identified in the
subrecipient agreement. Recipient shall pay subrecipient following the same procedures described in
paragraph 4 of this Agreement upon submission of invoices for allowable expenses, accompanied by
supporting documentation sufficient to justify invoiced expenses or fees, and after acceptance of services
and deliverables in writing by the Recipient.

C. Commission Right to Reject Subrecipient or Subcontractor Employees.

The Commission shall retain the right to reject any of the Recipient’s, subrecipient’s or subcontractor’s
employees working or anticipated to work on this project, whose qualifications or performance, in the
Commission’s judgment, are insufficient.

D. Subcontractor and Subrecipient Conflict of Interest.

If subcontracting or entering a subrecipient agreement is permitted pursuant to Paragraph A above, the
Recipient agrees to take such actions as may be necessary to ensure that each subcontractor or subrecipient
covenants that it presently has no interest and shall not acquire any interest that would conflict in any
manner or degree with the performance of services required. Each Party hereto covenants that there is no
conflict of interest or any other prohibited relationship between the Recipient, as applicable subrecipient or
subcontractor, and the Commission.

Section 15. MANDATORY DISCLOSURE.

These disclosures are required by State law, as indicated, and apply when this Agreement includes State funding;
and by Federal law, as indicated, and apply when the Agreement includes a Federal award.

A. Disclosure of Interested State Employees.

This Agreement is subject to Chapter 112, F.S. Recipient shall provide the name of any officer, director,
employee, or other agent who is affiliated with this project and an employee of the State of Florida. If the
Agreement includes a Federal award, then the Agreement is also subject to Section 200.112, OMB Uniform
Guidance (2 CFR 200). Recipient must disclose, in writing, any potential conflict of interest to the
Commission in accordance with applicable Federal awarding agency policy.

Recipient/Subrecipient Agreement Last Revised: 3.20.2023 Page 12 of 29



FWC Agreement No. #23055

B. Convicted Vendors.

The Recipient hereby certifies that neither it, nor any person or affiliate of Recipient, has been convicted of
a Public Entity Crime as defined in section 287.133, F.S., nor placed on the convicted vendor list. Recipient
shall have a continuing obligation to disclose, to the Commission, in writing, if it, its principals, recipient,
subrecipient, contractor, or subcontractor, are on the convicted vendors list maintained by the Florida
Department of Management Services pursuant to Section 287.133(3)(d), F.S.

i.  Convicted Vendor List. Pursuant to Subsection 287.133(2)(a), F.S., a person or affiliate who has
been placed on the convicted vendor list following a conviction for a public entity crime may not be
awarded or perform work as a Recipient, supplier, subcontractor or consultant under a contract with
any public entity and may not transact business with any public entity in excess of the threshold
amount provided in Section 287.017, F.S., for Category Two for a period of thirty-six (36) months
from the date of being placed on the convicted vendor list. The State of Florida, Department of
Management Services, Division of State Purchasing provides listings for convicted, suspended,
discriminatory and federal excluded parties, as well as the vendor complaint list at:

https://www.dms.myflorida.com/business _operations/state_purchasing/state_agency_resources/ven
dor_registration and_vendor_lists

ii.  Notice of Conviction of Public Entity Crime. Any person must notify the Department of
Management Services and the Commission, in writing, within thirty (30) days after conviction of a
public entity crime applicable to that person or an affiliate of that person as defined in Section
287.133, F.S.

ili. = Vendors on Scrutinized Companies List. The Recipient certifies that it and any of its affiliates are
not scrutinized companies as identified in Section 287.135, F.S. In addition, the Recipient agrees to
observe the requirements of Section 287.135, F.S., for applicable sub-agreements entered into for
the performance of work under this Agreement. Pursuant to Section 287.135, F.S., the Commission
may immediately terminate this Agreement for cause if the Recipient, its affiliates, or its
subcontractors are found to have submitted a false certification; or if the Recipient, its affiliates, or
its subcontractors are placed on any applicable scrutinized companies list or engaged in prohibited
contracting activity during the term of the Agreement. As provided in Subsection 287.135(8), F.S.,
if federal law ceases to authorize these contracting prohibitions, then they shall become inoperative.

C. Discriminatory Vendors.

The Recipient shall disclose to the Commission, in writing, if they, their subrecipient, contractor, or
subcontractor, are on the Discriminatory Vendor List maintained by the Florida Department of Management
Services pursuant to Section 287.134(3)(d), F.S. “An entity or affiliate who has been placed on the
discriminatory vendor list may not submit a bid, proposal, or reply on a contract to provide any goods or
services to a public entity; may not submit a bid, proposal, or reply on a contract with a public entity for the
construction or repair of a public building or public work; may not submit bids, proposals, or replies on
leases of real property to a public entity; may not be awarded or perform work as a contractor, supplier,
subcontractor, or consultant under a contract with any public entity; and may not transact business with any
public entity.” Section 287.134(2)(a), F.S. Recipient has a continuing duty to disclose to the Commission
whether they appear on the discriminatory vendor list.

D. Prompt Disclosure of Litigation, Investigations, Arbitration, or Administrative Proceedings.

Throughout the term of the Agreement, the Recipient has a continuing duty to promptly disclose to the
Commission’s Grant Manager, in writing, upon occurrence, all civil or criminal litigation, investigations,
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arbitration, or administrative proceedings (Proceedings) relating to or affecting the Recipient’s ability to
perform under this Agreement. If the existence of such Proceeding causes the Commission concern that the
Recipient’s ability or willingness to perform the Agreement is jeopardized, the Recipient may be required
to provide the Commission with reasonable assurances to demonstrate that: a.) the Recipient will be able to
perform the Agreement in accordance with its terms and conditions; and, b.) Recipient and/or its employees
or agents have not and will not engage in conduct in performing services for the Commission which is
similar in nature to the conduct alleged in such Proceeding.

E. Certain Violations of Federal Criminal Law.

If this Agreement includes a Federal award, then in accordance with Section 200.113, OMB Uniform
Guidance (2 CFR 200), Recipient must disclose, in a timely manner, in writing to the Commission all
violations of Federal criminal law involving fraud, bribery, or gratuity violations potentially affecting the
Federal award.

Section 16. INSURANCE.

If the Recipient is a state or federal agency with self-insurance, Recipient warrants and represents that it is
insured, or self-insured for liability insurance, in accordance with applicable state or federal law and that such
insurance or self-insurance offers protection applicable to the Recipient’s officers, employees, servants and agents
while acting within the scope of their employment with the Recipient.

If the Recipient is not a state or federal agency with self-insurance, then the following applies:

A. Reasonably Associated Insurance.

During the term of the Agreement, the Recipient, at its sole expense, shall maintain insurance coverage of
such types and with such terms and limits as may be reasonably associated with the Agreement. Providing
and maintaining adequate insurance coverage is a material obligation of the Recipient, and failure to
maintain such coverage may void the Agreement. The limits of coverage under each policy maintained by
the Recipient shall not be interpreted as limiting the Recipient’s liability and obligations under the
Agreement. All insurance policies shall be through insurers licensed and authorized to write policies in
Florida.

B. Workers Compensation.

To the extent required by Chapter 440, F.S., the Recipient will either be self-insured for Worker’s
Compensation claims or will secure and maintain during the life of this Agreement, Worker’s
Compensation Insurance for all of its employees connected with the work of this project, with minimum
employers’ liability limits of $100,000.00 per accident, $100,000.00 per person, and $500,000.00 policy
aggregate. Such policy shall cover all employees engaged in any contract work. If any work is
subcontracted, the Recipient shall require the subcontractor similarly to provide Workers’ Compensation
Insurance for all of the latter’s employees unless such employees are covered by the protection afforded by
the Recipient. Such self-insurance program or insurance coverage shall comply fully with the Florida
Workers’ Compensation Law (Chapter 440, F.S.). In case any class of employees engaged in hazardous
work under this Agreement is not protected under Workers’ Compensation statutes, the Recipient shall
provide, and cause each subcontractor to provide, adequate insurance satisfactory to the Recipient, for the
protection of its employees not otherwise protected. Employers who have employees who are engaged in
work in Florida must use Florida rates, rules, and classifications for those employees.
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C. General Liability Insurance.

By execution of this Agreement, unless Recipient is a state agency or subdivision as defined by Subsection
768.28(2), F.S. or unless otherwise provided for in Attachment A, the Recipient shall provide reasonable
and adequate commercial general liability insurance coverage and hold such liability insurance at all times
during the Agreement. A self-insurance program established and operating under the laws of the State of
Florida may provide such coverage.

D. Insurance Required for Performance.

During the Agreement term, the Recipient shall maintain any other types and forms of insurance required
for the performance of this Agreement as required in Attachment A.

E. Written Verification of Insurance.

Upon execution of this Agreement, the Recipient shall provide the Commission written verification of the
existence and amount for each type of applicable insurance coverage. Within thirty (30) days of the
effective date of the Agreement, Recipient shall furnish proof of applicable insurance coverage to the
Commission’s Grant Manager by standard Association for Cooperative Operations Research and
Development (ACORD) form certificates of insurance. In the event that any applicable coverage is
cancelled by the insurer for any reason, Recipient shall immediately notify the Commission’s Grant
Manager in writing of such cancellation and shall obtain adequate replacement coverage conforming to the
requirements herein and provide proof of such replacement coverage within fifteen (15) business days after
the cancellation of coverage.

F. Commission Not Responsible for Insurance Deductible.

The Commission shall be exempt from, and in no way liable for, any sums of money representing a
deductible in any insurance policy. The payment of such deductible shall be the sole responsibility of
Recipient providing such insurance.

Section 17. SPONSORSHIP.

As required by Section 286.25, F.S., if the Recipient is a nongovernmental organization which sponsors a program
financed wholly or in part by state funds, including any funds obtained through this Agreement, it shall, in
publicizing, advertising, or describing the sponsorship of the program, state: “Sponsored by (Recipient’s name)
and the State of Florida, Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission.” If the sponsorship reference is in written
material, the words “State of Florida, Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission” shall appear in the same size
letters or type as the name of the Recipient’s organization. Additional sponsorship requirements may be specified
in Attachment A.

Section 18. PUBLIC RECORDS.

A.

All records in conjunction with this Agreement shall be public records and shall be treated in the same
manner as other public records that are under Chapter 119, F.S.

This Agreement may be unilaterally canceled by the Commission for refusal by the Recipient to allow
public access to all documents, papers, letters, or other material subject to the provisions of Chapter 119,
F.S., and made or received by the Recipient in conjunction with this Agreement, unless exemption for
such records is allowable under Florida law.
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C. Ifthe Recipient meets the definition of “Contractor” in Section 119.0701(1)(a) F.S., the Recipient shall
comply with the following:

i. IF THE CONTRACTOR HAS QUESTIONS REGARDING THE
APPLICATION OF THE CHAPTER 119, FLORIDA STATUTES, TO
THE CONTRACTOR’S DUTY TO PROVIDE PUBLIC RECORDS
RELATING TO THIS CONTRACT, CONTACT THE CUSTODIAN
OF PUBLIC RECORDS AT: 850-488-6553,

RecordsCustodian@myfwc.com, and 620 South Meridian Street,
Tallahassee FL 32399

ii. Keep and maintain public records required by the Commission to perform the service.

iii. Upon request from the Commission’s custodian of public records, provide the Commission with a
copy of the requested records or allow the records to be inspected or copied within a reasonable
time at a cost that does not exceed the cost provided in Chapter 119, F.S. or as otherwise provided
by law.

iv. Ensure that public records that are exempt or confidential and exempt from public records
disclosure requirements are not disclosed except as authorized by law for the duration of the
contract term and following completion of the contract if the Contractor does not transfer the
records to the Commission.

v. Upon completion of the contract transfer, at no cost, to the Commission all public records in
possession of the Contractor or keep and maintain public records required by the Commission to
perform the service. If the Contractor transfers all public records to the Commission upon
completion of the contract, the Contractor shall destroy any duplicate public records that are
exempt or confidential and exempt from public records disclosure requirements. If the Contractor
keeps and maintains public records upon completion of the contract, the Contractor shall meet all
applicable requirements for retaining public records. All records stored electronically must be
provided to the Commission, upon request from the Commission’s custodian of public records, in
a format that is compatible with the information technology systems of the Commission.

Section 19. COOPERATION WITH INSPECTOR GENERAL.

Pursuant to subsection 20.055(5), F.S., Recipient, and any subcontractor to the Recipient, understand and will
comply with their duty to cooperate with the Inspector General in any investigation, audit, inspection, review, or
hearing. Upon request of the Inspector General or any other authorized State official, the Recipient shall provide
any type of information the Inspector General deems relevant to the Recipient's integrity or responsibility. Such
information may include, but shall not be limited to, the Recipient's business or financial records, documents, or
files of any type or form that refer to or relate to the Agreement. The Recipient agrees to reimburse the State for
the reasonable costs of investigation incurred by the Inspector General or other authorized State official for
investigations of the Recipient's compliance with the terms of this or any other agreement between the Recipient
and the State which results in the suspension or debarment of the Recipient. Such costs shall include but not be
limited to salaries of investigators, including overtime; travel and lodging expenses; and expert witness and
documentary fees.
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Section 20. SECURITY AND CONFIDENTIALITY.

The Recipient shall maintain the security of any information created under this Agreement that is identified or
defined as “confidential” in Attachment A. The Recipient shall not divulge to third Parties any confidential
information obtained by the Recipient or its agents, distributors, resellers, subcontractors, officers or employees in
the course of performing Agreement work. To ensure confidentiality, the Recipient shall take appropriate steps
regarding its personnel, agents, and subcontractors. The warranties of this paragraph shall survive the Agreement.

Section 21. RECORD KEEPING REQUIREMENTS.
A. Recipient Responsibilities.

The Recipient shall maintain accurate books, records, documents and other evidence that sufficiently and
properly reflect all direct and indirect costs of any nature expended in the performance of this Agreement,
in accordance with generally accepted accounting principles.

B. State Access to Contractor Books, Documents, Papers, and Records.

The Recipient shall allow the Commission, the Chief Financial Officer of the State of Florida, the Auditor
General of the State of Florida, the Florida Office of Program Policy Analysis and Government
Accountability or authorized representatives of the state or federal government to have access to any of the
Recipient’s books, documents, papers, and records, including electronic storage media, as they may relate
to this Agreement, for the purposes of conducting audits or examinations or making excerpts or
transcriptions..

C. Recipient Records Retention.

Unless otherwise specified in Attachment A, these records shall be maintained for five (5) fiscal years
following the close of this Contract, or the period required for this particular type of project by the General
Records Schedules maintained by the Florida Department of State (https://dos.myflorida.com/library-
archives/records-management/general-records-schedules/), whichever is longer. Recipient shall cooperate
with the Commission to facilitate the duplication and transfer of such records upon the Commission’s
request.

D. Recipient Responsibility to Include Records Requirements — Subcontractors.

In the event any work is subcontracted under this Agreement, the Recipient shall include the
aforementioned audit and record keeping requirements in all subsequent contracts.

E. Compliance with Federal Funding Accountability and Transparency.

Any federal funds awarded under this Agreement must comply with the Federal Funding Accountability
and Transparency Act (FFATA) of 2006. The intent of the FFATA is to empower every American with the
ability to hold the government accountable for each spending decision. The result is to reduce wasteful
spending in the government. The FFATA legislation requires that information on federal awards (federal
financial assistance and expenditures) be made available to the public via a single, searchable website:
www.USASpending.gov. Grant recipients awarded a new Federal grant greater than or equal to $25,000.00
awarded on or after October 1, 2010, are subject to the FFATA. The Recipient agrees to provide the
information necessary, over the life of this Agreement, for the Commission to comply with this
requirement.
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Section 22. FEDERAL AND FLORIDA SINGLE AUDIT ACT (FSAA) REQUIREMENTS.

Pursuant to the FSAA (or Federal) Vendor / Recipient Determination Checklist, the Recipient has been determined
to be a recipient of state financial assistance and/or a subrecipient of a federal award. Therefore, pursuant to
Section 215.97, F.S. and/or OMB Uniform Guidance (2 CFR 200), the Recipient may be subject to the audit
requirements of the Florida and/or Federal Single Audit Acts. If applicable, the Recipient shall comply with the
audit requirements outlined in Attachment B, attached hereto and made a part of the Agreement, as applicable.

Section 23. FEDERAL COMPLIANCE.
As applicable, Recipient shall comply with all federal laws, rules, and regulations, including but not limited to:

A. Clean Air Act and Water Pollution Control Act.

All applicable standards, orders, or requirements issued under the Clean Air Act (42 U.S.C. 7401-7671q),
and the Water Pollution Control Act (33 U.S.C. 1251-1387, as amended).

B. Lacey Act, 16 U.S.C 3371-3378.
This Act prohibits trade in wildlife, fish and plants have been illegally taken, possessed, transported or sold.

C. Magnuson-Stevens Fishery Conservation and Management Act, 16 U.S.C. 1801-1884.

This Act governs marine fisheries in Federal waters.

D. Migratory Bird Treaty Act, 16 U.S.C. 703-712.

The Act prohibits anyone, unless permitted, to pursue, hunt, take, capture, kill, attempt to take, capture or
kill, possess, offer for sale, sell, offer to purchase, deliver for shipment, ship, cause to be shipped, deliver
for transportation, transport, cause to be transported, carry or cause to be carried by any means whatsoever,
receive for shipment, transport of carriage, or export, at any time, or in any manner, any migratory bird, or
any part, nest, or egg of such bird.

E. Endangered Species Act, 16 U.S.C. 1531, et seq.

The Act provides a program for the conservation of threatened and endangered plants and animals and the
habitat in which they are found. The Act also prohibits any action that cause a “taking” of any listed species
of endangered fish or wildlife. Also, generally prohibited are the import, export, interstate, and foreign
commerce of listed species.

Section 24. FEDERAL FUNDS.
No Federal Funds are applied to this Agreement, therefore, the following terms and conditions do not apply.

A. Prior Approval to Expend Federal Funds to Federal Agency or Employee.

It is understood and agreed that the Recipient is not authorized to expend any federal funds under this
Agreement to a federal agency or employee without the prior written approval of the awarding federal
agency.

B. Equal Employment Opportunity.

Executive Order 11246 of September 24, 1965, entitled “Equal Employment Opportunity,” as amended by
Executive Order 11375 of October 13, 1967, and as supplemented in Department of Labor regulations (41
CFR Part 60-1.4). 41 CFR Part 60-1.4 is hereby incorporated by reference.
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C. Davis-Bacon Act.

Unless exempt, the Davis-Bacon Act, 40 U.S.C. 3141-3148, as supplemented by Department of Labor
regulations at 29 CFR Part 5, is applicable to contractors and subcontractors performing on federally
funded or assisted contracts in excess of $2,000.00 for the construction, alteration, or repair (including
painting and decorating) of public buildings or public works. Under this Act, contractors and subcontractors
must pay their laborers and mechanics employed under the Agreement no less than the locally prevailing
wages and fringe benefits for corresponding work on similar projects in the area. Davis-Bacon Act does not
apply if federal funding is solely provided by the American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA).

D. Copeland “Anti-Kickback Act”.

i.  Recipient. The Recipient shall comply with 18 U.S.C. § 874, 40 U.S.C. § 3145, and the
requirements of 29 CFR Part 3 as may be applicable, which are incorporated by reference into this
Agreement.

ii.  Subcontracts. The Recipient or subrecipient/subcontractor shall insert in any subcontracts the clause
above and such other clauses as FEMA may by appropriate instructions require, and also a clause
requiring the subrecipients/subcontractors to include these clauses in any lower tier subcontracts.
The Recipient shall be responsible for the compliance by any subrecipient/subcontractor or lower tier
subrecipient/subcontractor with all these contract clauses.

ili.  Breach. A breach of the Agreement clauses above may be grounds for termination of the Agreement,
and for debarment as a contractor and subcontractor as provided in 29 CFR § 5.12.

E. Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act
29 CFR 5.5(b) Contract Work Hours and Safety Standards Act is hereby incorporated by reference.

F. Rights to Inventions

If this Agreement is supported by federal funds and meets the definition of “funding agreement” under 37
CFR Part 401.2(a) then the Recipient must comply with all requirements of 37 CFR Part 401.

G. Energy Efficiency.

Mandatory standards and policies relating to energy efficiency which are contained in the State energy
conservation plan issued in compliance with the Energy Policy and Conservation Act (Pub. L. 94-163, 89
Stat. 871) applies.

H. Debarment and Suspension Recipient Federal Certification

i.  This Agreement is a covered transaction for purposes of 2 CFR Part 180 and 2 CFR Part 3000. As
such, the Recipient is required to verify that none of the Recipient’s principals (defined at 2 CFR §
180.995) or its affiliates (defined at 2 CFR § 180.905) are excluded (defined at 2 CFR § 180.940) or
disqualified (defined at 2 CFR § 180.935).

ii.  The Recipient must comply with 2 CFR Part 180, subpart C and 2 CFR Part 3000, subpart C, and
must include a requirement to comply with these regulations in any lower tier covered transaction it

enters into.

iii.  This certification is a material representation of fact relied upon by Recipient/Subrecipient. If it is
later determined that the Recipient did not comply with 2 CFR Part 180, subpart C and 2 CFR Part
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3000, subpart C, in addition to remedies available to Recipient/Subrecipient, the Federal
Government may pursue available remedies, including but not limited to suspension and/or
debarment.

iv.  The Recipient agrees to comply with the requirements of 2 CFR Part 180, subpart C and 2 CFR Part
3000, subpart C while this offer is valid and throughout the period of any Agreement that may arise
from this offer. The Recipient further agrees to include a provision requiring such compliance in its
lower tier covered transactions.

I. Byrd Anti-Lobbying Amendment

Recipients awarded $100,000 or more in Federal funds shall file the required certification. Recipients shall
file the required certification with the Commission’s Grant Manager five (5) business days after Agreement
execution. Each tier certifies to the tier above that it will not and has not used Federal appropriated funds to
pay any person or organization for influencing or attempting to influence an officer or employee of any
agency, a Member of Congress, officer or employee of Congress, or an employee of a Member of Congress
in connection with obtaining any Federal contract, grant, or any other award covered by 31 USC Part 1352.
Each tier shall also disclose any lobbying with non-Federal funds that takes place in connection with
obtaining any Federal award. Such disclosures are forwarded from tier to tier up to the Recipient who in
turn will forward the certification(s) to the Commission.

J. Procurement of Recovered Materials

i.  Inthe performance of this Agreement, the Recipient shall make maximum use of products
containing recovered materials that are EPA-designated items unless the product cannot be
acquired—

a. Competitively within a timeframe providing for compliance with the Agreement performance
schedule;

b. Meeting Agreement performance requirements; or
c. Atareasonable price.

ii.  Information about this requirement, along with the list of EPA- designated items, is available at
EPA’s Comprehensive Procurement Guidelines.

iii.  The Recipient also agrees to comply with all other applicable requirements of Section 6002 of the
Solid Waste Disposal Act.

K. Domestic Preference for Procurements

i.  As appropriate and to the extent consistent with law, the Recipient should, to the greatest extent
practicable under a Federal award, provide a preference for the purchase, acquisition, or use of
goods, products, or materials produced in the United States (including but not limited to iron,
aluminum, steel, cement, and other manufactured products). The requirements of this section must
be included in all subcontracts including all contracts for work or products under this Agreement.

ii.  For purposes of this section:
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a. “Produced in the United States” means, for iron and steel products, that all manufacturing
processes, from the initial melting stage through the application of coatings, occurred in the
United States.

b. “Manufactured products” means items and construction materials composed in whole or in part
of non-ferrous metals such as aluminum,; plastics and polymer-based products such as polyvinyl
chloride pipe; aggregates such as concrete; glass, including optical fiber; and lumber.

L. Compliance with Office of Management and Budget Circulars.

As applicable, Recipient shall comply with the following Office of Management and Budget (OMB)
Uniform Guidance (2 CFR 200).

M. Drug Free Workplace.

Pursuant to the Drug-Free Workplace Act of 1988, the Recipient attests and certifies that the Recipient will
provide a drug-free workplace compliant with 41 U.S.C. 81.

N. American Rescue Plan Act (ARPA) of 2021.
If this Agreement relies on ARPA federal funds, then the following shall apply:

i.  Recipients shall provide their Unique Entity Identifier (UEI) and any other financial information
requested in the sam.gov financial registration process to the Commission prior to Agreement
execution.

ii.  Public Law 117-2, American Rescue Plan Act of 2021, Title XI-Committee of Finance Subtitle M;
Section 9901.

ili. = Coronavirus State Fiscal Recovery Fund (SFRF) (31 CFR Part 35).
iv.  Office of Management and Budget (OMB) Uniform Guidance (2 CFR 200).

v.  US Department of Treasury, Compliance and Reporting Guidance State and Local Recovery
Funds, as amended.

O. Build America, Buy America (BABA) provision of the Infrastructure Investment and Jobs Act
(I1JA) of 2021. (117 P.L. 58).

If federal funds are awarded to be used in this Agreement for any project involving construction, alteration,
maintenance, or repair of infrastructure in the United States, and if the project involves infrastructure as
defined by §70912(5) of BABA, which includes, but is not limited to roads, highways, and bridges; public
transportation; dams, ports, harbors, and other maritime facilities; intercity passenger and freight railroads;
freight and intermodal facilities; airports; water systems, including drinking water and wastewater systems;
electrical transmission facilities and systems; utilities; broadband infrastructure; and buildings and real
property; then:

i.  Alliron and steel, manufactured products, and construction materials used in the project must be
produced in the United States.

ii. = The BABA provision applies to all articles, materials, and supplies consumed in, incorporated
into, or affixed to an infrastructure project for federal awards on or after May 14, 2022.
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iii.  All subcontractors, successors, or assignees to this Agreement will be held to the same
requirements as the original Parties to this Agreement.

iv.  The BABA provision does not apply to tools, equipment, and supplies brought to the construction
site and removed at or before completion of the infrastructure project. Nor does the BABA
provision apply to equipment and furnishings used at or within the finished infrastructure project
but are not an integral part of the structure or permanently affixed to the infrastructure project.

P. Prohibition on Certain Telecommunications and Video Surveillance Services or Equipment

Recipients and subrecipients are prohibited from obligating or expending loan or grant funds to procure,
obtain, extend or renew an agreement that utilizes telecommunications equipment produced by Huawei
Technologies Company or ZTE Corporation (or any subsidiary or affiliate of such entities).

i.  For the purpose of public safety, security of government facilities, physical security surveillance of
critical infrastructure, and other national security purposes, video surveillance and
telecommunications equipment produced by Hytera Communications Corporation, Hangzhou
Hikvision Digital Technology Company, or Dahua Technology Company (or any subsidiary or
affiliate of such entities).

ii. Telecommunications or video surveillance services provided by such entities or using such
equipment.

iii. Telecommunications or video surveillance equipment or services produced or provided by an
entity that the Secretary of Defense, in consultation with the Director of the National Intelligence
or the Director of the Federal Bureau of Investigation, reasonably believes to be an entity owned
or controlled by, or otherwise connected to, the government of a covered foreign country.

Section 25. AGREEMENT-RELATED PROCUREMENT.
A. PRIDE.

In accordance with Section 946.515(6), F.S., if a product or service required for the performance of this
Contract is certified by or is available from Prison Rehabilitative Industries and Diversified Enterprises,
Inc. (PRIDE) and has been approved in accordance with Subsection 946.515(2), F.S., the following
statement applies:

It is expressly understood and agreed that any articles which are the subject of, or required to carry out,
this contract shall be purchased from [PRIDE] in the same manner and under the same procedures set
forth in Subsections 946.515(2) and (4), F.S.; and for purposes of this contract the person, firm or other
business entity carrying out the provisions of this contract shall be deemed to be substituted for this
agency insofar as dealings with such corporation are concerned.

The above clause is not applicable to subcontractors unless otherwise required by law. Additional
information about PRIDE and the products it offers is available at http://www.pride-enterprises.org.

B. Respect of Florida.

In accordance with Subsection 413.036(3), F.S., if a product or service required for the performance of this
Contract is on the procurement list established pursuant to Subsection 413.035(2), F.S., the following
statement applies:
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It is expressly understood and agreed that any articles that are the subject of, or required to carry out,
this contract shall be purchased from a nonprofit agency for the blind or for the severely handicapped
that is qualified pursuant to Chapter 413, F.S., in the same manner and under the same procedures set
forth in Subsections 413.036(1) and (2), F.S.; and for purposes of this contract, the person, firm or other
business entity carrying out the provisions of this contract shall be deemed to be substituted for the
state agency insofar as dealings with such qualified nonprofit agency are concerned.

Additional information about the designated nonprofit agency and the products it offers is available at
http://www.respectofflorida.org.

C. Procurement of Recycled Products or Materials.

Contractor agrees to procure any recycled products or materials which are the subject of or are required to
carry out this Contract in accordance with Section 403.7065, F.S.

Section 26. INDEMNIFICATION.

If the Recipient is a state agency or subdivision, as defined in Subsection 768.28(2), F.S., or as a governmental
entity as defined in Subsection 287.012(14), F.S., neither Party indemnifies nor insures the other Party for the
other Party’s negligence. Recipient is responsible for all personal injury and property damage attributable to the
negligent acts or omissions of that party, its officers, employees, volunteers and agents. Nothing contained herein
shall be construed or interpreted as denying to any party any remedy or defense available under the laws of the
state of Florida, nor as a waiver of sovereign immunity of the state of Florida beyond the waiver provided for in
section 768.28, F.S., as amended.

If Recipient is not a state agency or subdivision as defined above, Recipient shall be fully liable for the actions of
its agents, employees, partners, or subcontractors and shall fully indemnify, defend, and hold harmless the State
and the Commission, and their officers, agents, and employees, from suits, actions, damages, and costs of every
name and description, including attorneys’ fees, arising from or relating to personal injury and damage to real or
personal tangible property alleged to be caused in whole or in part by Recipient, its agents, employees, partners,
or subcontractors, provided, however, that Recipient shall not indemnify for that portion of any loss or damages
proximately caused by the negligent act or omission of the State or the Commission. The Commission reserves
the right to select its counsel.

Section 27. NON-DISCRIMINATION.

No person, on the grounds of race, color, religion, gender, pregnancy, national origin, age, handicap, or marital
status, shall be excluded from participation in, be denied the proceeds or benefits of, or be otherwise subjected to
discrimination in performance of this Agreement.

Section 28. MEDIATION.

In the event of any claim or dispute arising by or between the Commission and the Recipient, each party shall
continue to perform as required under the Agreement, notwithstanding the existence of such claim or dispute, it
being acknowledged that time is of the essence. This provision includes, but is not limited to, the obligation to
continue to perform under the Agreement notwithstanding disputes as to amounts due for payment hereunder.

Except for any claim, dispute, or matter in question that has been waived by the acceptance of final payment, or
that is otherwise barred by the applicable statute of limitations or other provision of law, any claim, dispute, or
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other matter in question arising out of, or relating to, the Work or the Agreement or the breach thereof, shall be
first submitted to non-binding mediation by a single mediator in Tallahassee, Florida

The party making a claim or dispute shall notify the other in writing of its claim or dispute within ten working
days of the event giving rise to the claim or dispute.

i.  Such notice shall give the other party ten working days from receipt of the notice to respond in
writing.
ii. Ifthe party initiating such notice is not satisfied with the response, then it shall invoke this clause

initiating non-binding mediation by sending a demand for mediation in writing to the other party
within seven (7) days.

iii.  The Parties have two weeks after notice to agree in writing upon a mediator.

iv.  Ifthe Parties cannot agree upon a Florida Supreme Court certified mediator, then the Parties shall
request the Chief Judge of the Second Judicial Circuit in Leon County, Florida, to appoint a Florida
Supreme Court certified mediator.

a. The mediator's fees shall be born equally by the Parties involved in the mediation and shall pay
all of its own attorneys' fees and expenses related to the mediation unless otherwise agreed.

b. Unless otherwise agreed by the Parties in writing, such mediation shall take place within forty-
five (45) days of the appointment of, or agreement to, the mediator if the mediator's schedule so
allows.

c. The terms of this Agreement and any dispute relating thereto will be governed by the laws of
the State of Florida, any litigation will be brought in the state or federal court in and for
Tallahassee, Florida, and you agree to submit to the exclusive jurisdiction of the state and
federal courts located in and for the Leon County, State of Florida.

d. All Parties agree to negotiate in good faith in an effort to settle any dispute. All Parties shall
have a representative present at mediation with the authority to settle the case.

v.  Any resolution achieved at mediation shall be set forth in a written settlement agreement.

vi.  The Recipient shall require all the dispute resolution provisions and requirements set out in this
Section in each contract it makes with any Subcontractor, material supplier, equipment supplier, or
fabricator.

vii.  Inno event shall the demand for mediation be made after the date when institution of legal or
equitable proceedings based on such claim, dispute, or other matter in question would be barred by
the applicable statute of limitations, or otherwise.

Unless otherwise agreed in writing, the Recipient shall carry on the Work and maintain its performance of this
Agreement during any claim, dispute, or mediation.

If any matter sought to be mediated by the Commission or the Recipient involves a claim or other matter by or
against the Consultant, any Subcontractor, any Separate Contractor, or any other third party, or any such entity is
reasonably necessary to be joined in the mediation to permit a full and complete disposition of the dispute
submitted hereunder, then the Consultant, Subcontractor, Separate Contractor or third party shall be joined by
personal service of the notice demanding mediation.
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Such termination of the mediation shall not preclude any party from commencing any judicial proceeding in a
court of competent jurisdiction in Leon County, Florida, providing the claims sought to be decided are not
otherwise barred.

Any demand for mediation and any answer to such demand must contain a written statement of each claim
alleged and the dollar amount in controversy sought in each claim.

Should mediation fail to resolve the claim submitted, the Parties may then proceed to seek applicable remedies at
law.

The agreement to mediate set forth in this Section shall apply to, and become part of, any Subcontract, any
confract into which these General Conditions are incorporated by reference or otherwise, and the Parties to such
contract shall mediate all disputes arising out of, or in any way relating to, that contract or the Project in
accordance with the provisions of this Section.

Section 29. SEVERABILITY, CHOICE OF LAW, AND CHOICE OF VENUE.

This Agreement has been delivered in the State of Florida. Florida law governs this Agreement, all agreements
arising under or out of this Agreement, and any legal action or other proceeding of any kind designed to resolve a
dispute that arises out of or relates to this Agreement. Wherever possible, each provision of this Agreement shall
be interpreted in such manner as to be effective and valid under applicable law. If a court or other tribunal finds
any provision of this Agreement unenforceable as written, the unenforceable provision(s) shall be ineffective to
the extent of such prohibition or invalidity, without invalidating the remainder of such provision and the
remaining provisions of this Agreement. The Parties have selected the Second Judicial Circuit in Leon County,
Florida, as the mandatory and exclusive forum for resolving any dispute, in law or equity, that arises out of or
relates to the Parties’ transactions. By signing this Agreement, Recipient affirms that Recipient considers the
Second Judicial Circuit to be a fair and convenient forum for any legal action or other proceeding of any kind
designed to resolve such a dispute. The Recipient will not initiate in any other forum a legal action or other
proceeding to which this provision applies.

Section 30. JURY TRIAL WAIVER.

As part of the consideration for this Agreement, the Parties hereby waive trial by jury in any action or proceeding
brought by any party against any other party pertaining to any matter whatsoever arising out of or in any way
connected with this Agreement, or with the products or services provided under this Agreement, including but not
limited to any claim by the Recipient of quantum meruit.

Section 31. NO THIRD-PARTY RIGHTS.

The Parties hereto do not intend, nor shall this Agreement be construed, to grant any rights, privileges or interest
to any person not a party to this Agreement.

Section 32. PROHIBITION OF UNAUTHORIZED ALIENS.

In accordance with Federal Executive Order 96-236, the Commission shall consider the employment by the
Recipient of unauthorized aliens a violation of Section 274A(e) of the Immigration and Nationalization Act. Such
violation shall be cause for unilateral cancellation of this Agreement if the Recipient knowingly employs
unauthorized aliens.
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Section 33. EMPLOYMENT ELIGIBILITY VERIFICATION (E-VERIFY).

A. Requirement to Use E-Verify.

Section 448.095(2) Florida Statute requires the Contractor to: 1.) utilize the U.S. Department of Homeland
Security’s E-Verify system to verify the employment eligibility of all new employees hired by the
Contractor during the Contract term; and 2.) include in all subcontracts under this Contract, the requirement
that subcontractors performing work or providing services pursuant to this Contract utilize the E-Verify
system to verify the employment eligibility of all new employees hired by the subcontractor during the
term of the subcontract.

B. E-Verify Online.

E-Verify is an Internet-based system that allows an employer, using information reported on an employee’s
Form I-9, Employment Eligibility Verification, to determine the eligibility of all new employees hired to
work in the United States. The Department of Homeland Security’s E-Verify system can be found online at
https://www.e-verify.gov.

C. Enrollment in E-Verify.

As a condition precedent to entering a Contract with the Commission, Contractors and Subcontractors shall
register with and use the E-Verify system. Failure to do so shall result in the Contract not being issued, or if
discovered after issuance, termination of the Contract.

D. E-Verify Recordkeeping.

The Contractor further agrees to maintain records of its participation and compliance with the provisions of
the E-Verify program, including participation by its subcontractors as provided above, and to make such
records available to the Commission or other authorized state entity consistent with the terms of the
Contractor’s enrollment in the program. This includes maintaining a copy of proof of the Contractor’s and
subcontractors’ enrollment in the E-Verify Program. If a contractor enters into a contract with a
subcontractor, the subcontractor must provide the contractor with an affidavit stating that the subcontractor
does not employ, contract with, or subcontract with an unauthorized alien. The contractor shall maintain a
copy of such affidavit for the duration of the contract.

E. Employment Eligibility Verification & Compliance.

Compliance with the terms of the Employment Eligibility Verification provision is made an express
condition of this Contract and the Commission may treat a failure to comply as a material breach of the
Agreement. If the Commission terminates the Contract pursuant to Section 448.095(2)(c) Florida Statute,
the contractor may not be awarded a public contract for at least 1 year after the date on which the contract
was terminated and the Contractor is liable for any additional costs incurred by The Commission as a result
of the termination of this Contract.

Section 34. FORCE MAJEURE AND NOTICE OF DELAY FROM FORCE MAJEURE.

Neither Party shall be liable to the other for any delay or failure to perform under this Agreement if such delay or
failure is neither the fault nor the negligence of the Party or its employees or agents and the delay is due directly
to acts of God, wars, acts of public enemies, strikes, fires, floods, or other similar cause wholly beyond the Party’s
control, or for any of the foregoing that affects subcontractors or suppliers if no alternate source of supply is
available. However, in the event of delay from the foregoing causes, the Party shall take all reasonable measures
to mitigate any and all resulting delay or disruption in the Party’s performance obligation under this Agreement. If
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the delay is excusable under this paragraph, the delay will not result in any additional charge or cost under the
Agreement to either Party. In the case of any delay Recipient believes is excusable under this paragraph, Recipient
shall notify the Commission’s Grant Manager in writing of the delay or potential delay and describe the cause of
the delay either: (1) within ten (10) calendar days after the cause that creates or will create the delay first arose, if
Recipient could reasonably foresee that a delay could occur as a result; or (2) within five (5) calendar days after
the date Recipient first had reason to believe that a delay could result, if the delay is not reasonably foreseeable.
THE FOREGOING SHALL CONSTITUTE THE RECIPIENT’S SOLE REMEDY OR EXCUSE WITH
RESPECT TO DELAY. Providing notice in strict accordance with this paragraph is a condition precedent to
such remedy. The Commission, in its sole discretion, will determine if the delay is excusable under this paragraph
and will notify Recipient of its decision in writing. No claim for damages, other than for an extension of time,
shall be asserted against the Commission. Recipient shall not be entitled to an increase in the Agreement price or
payment of any kind from the Commission for direct, indirect, consequential, impact, or other costs, expenses or
damages, including but not limited to costs of acceleration or inefficiency arising because of delay, disruption,
interference, or hindrance from any cause whatsoever. If performance is suspended or delayed, in whole or in part,
due to any of the causes described in this paragraph, after the causes have ceased to exist, Recipient shall perform
at no increased cost, unless the Commission determines, in its sole discretion, that the delay will significantly
impair the value of the Agreement to the Commission or the State, in which case, the Commission may do any or
all of the following: (1) accept allocated performance or deliveries from Recipient, provided that Recipient grants
preferential treatment to the Commission with respect to products or services subjected to allocation; (2) purchase
from other sources (without recourse to and by Recipient for the related costs and expenses) to replace all or part
of the products or services that are the subject of the delay, which purchases may be deducted from the Agreement
quantity; or (3) terminate the Agreement in whole or in part.

Section 35. TIME IS OF THE ESSENCE.

Time is of the essence regarding the performance obligations set forth in this Agreement. Any additional deadlines
for performance for Recipient’s obligation to timely provide deliverables under this Agreement including but not
limited to timely submittal of reports, are contained in Attachment A.

Section 36. REPORTING REQUIREMENTS CONCERNING EXECUTIVE ORDER 20-44.
This term does not apply to governmental entities.

If this Agreement is a sole-source, public-private agreement or if the Recipient, through this Agreement with the
State, annually receives 50% or more of their budget from the State or from a combination of State and Federal
funds, the Recipient shall provide an annual report (Executive Order 20-44 Attestation Form, Attachment C),
including the most recent IRS Form 990, detailing the total compensation for the entities' executive leadership
teams. Total compensation shall include salary, bonuses, cashed-in leave, cash equivalents, severance pay,
retirement benefits, deferred compensation, real-property gifts, and any other payout.

The Recipient must also inform the Commission’s Grant Manager of any changes in total executive compensation
between the annual reports. All compensation reports must indicate what percent of compensation comes directly
from the State or Federal allocations to the Recipient.

Section 37. MEDIA REQUESTS.

Recipients shall refer all requests by the media or public relations personnel to the Commission’s Grant Manager.
Recipients must submit a written request for permission before consulting with the media and the Commission
will provide consultation and talking points. Recipients will not issue news releases, respond to questions, or
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make statements on behalf of the Commission or its partners without prior direction and the Commission’s written
approval. Production and filming requests related to this Agreement shall be processed through the Commission
only.

Section 38. USE OF SMALL UNMANNED AIRCRAFT SYSTEMS

Unless superseded or otherwise further described in Attachments A, if the Recipient intends to use a small
unmanned aircraft system (sUAS) at any time throughout the duration of the Agreement, the Recipient shall
request approval from the Commission, in writing, prior to use. Upon request by the Commission, the Recipient
shall provide all required documentation, such as license or certification, flight plans, and registrations. The
Commission will notify the Recipient in writing of the approval or rejection of the request. If approved, the
Recipient will be provided with the Commission’s policies, and is responsible and liable for adhering to any and
all rules and regulations, including the Commissions policies, applicable to operating SUAS.

Section 39. ENTIRE AGREEMENT.

This Agreement with all incorporated attachments and exhibits represents the entire Agreement of the Parties. Any
alterations, variations, changes, modifications or waivers of provisions of this Agreement shall only be valid when
they have been reduced to writing, and duly signed by each of the Parties hereto, unless otherwise provided
herein. In the event of conflict, the following order of precedence shall prevail: this Agreement and its
attachments, the terms of the solicitation and the Recipient’s response to the solicitation.

REMAINDER OF THE PAGE INTENTIONALLY LEFT BLANK

SIGNATURE PAGE TO FOLLOW
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SIGNATURES

IN WITNESS WHEREOF, the Parties hereto have caused this Agreement to be executed through their duly
authorized signatories on the day and year last written below.

RECIPIENT EXECUTION SIGNATURE COMMISSION EXECUTION SIGNATURE

Taylor County Board of County Commissioners Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation
Commission

Recipient Signature Executive Director (or Designee) Signature

Print Name Print Name

Title Title

Date Date

ATTACHMENTS
Attachments in this Agreement include the following:

o Attachment A, Scope of Work
e Attachment B, Requirements of the Federal and Florida Single Audit Acts
e Attachment C, Cost Reimbursement Contract Payment Requirements
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Attachment A - SCOPE OF WORK

Project Name: | Taylor County FWC Agreement No. | 23055

Artificial Reef Monitoring 2023-24

1. DESCRIPTION OF GOODS / SERVICES PROCURED, OR PROJECT WORKPLAN

A. DESCRIPTION OF GOODS / SERVICES

The two main purposes of this project are to continue the Taylor County’s artificial reef biological
monitoring program and evaluate the stability and function of the existing artificial reef materials
within the Buckeye Artificial Reef permitted site. To accomplish these goals, the following
deliverables will be achieved: (1) host a re-training program for all Taylor County Reef Research
Team volunteers on proper data collection procedures and fish identification; (2) conduct a
minimum of 18 artificial reef biological and material assessments on six patch reefs within the
Buckeye Artificial Reef permitted area; (3) draft a data analysis summary that outlines the results
of the monitoring surveys; (4) a data analysis summary that assesses the results of the monitoring
surveys. The selected monitoring sites are intended to continue to act as long-term monitoring
stations to increase the County’s knowledge on spatial and temporal changes in abundance and
composition of fish species observed at each sampling location. This information will help inform
artificial reef development in the region.

The selected monitoring sites are based upon the results from the third year of sampling within this
permitted area (completed in 2023) and are intended to continue to act as long-term monitoring
stations to increase the County’s knowledge on spatial and temporal changes in the abundance and
composition of fish species observed at each sampling location. This information will help inform
future artificial reef development in the region.

This study will monitor six (6) of the 33 separate patch reefs within the Buckeye Artificial Reef
permitted area. These reefs were deployed between the years of 1998 and 2015. This area provides
a great opportunity to observe three commonly used artificial reef materials (metal, concrete
modules, and secondary-use concrete) over time.

During this Agreement, the nine patch reefs will be monitored through diver surveys. A minimum
of two divers will collect fish census data and complete a material assessment for each site during
the Agreement.

Table 1: Dixie County Dive Survey Sites

Reel I’;‘z:;’wy“g;“t Deploy Date | Lo¢ation Material Depth
02 2020 | TA0030 08/2013 29°38.879'N, 83° 54.767' W__| 4 Concrete Lindberg Cubes | 50'
05 2020 | N/A N/A 29° 38.675'N, 83° 54.507'W | Pieces of Scrap Metal 48
08 2020 | TA0031 09/2013 29° 38.440° N, 83° 54.748° W | Concrete Culverts/Pipes 50"
09 2020 | TA0013 05/2003 29°38.190'N, 83°54.706'W__ | 4 Towers (2 large, 2 Junior) | 51'
14 2020 | TA0010 06/1996 29° 39.003'N, 83° 54.245'W | Pieces of Scrap Metal 47
18 2020 | TA0034 08/2015 29° 38.809'N, 83° 54.250' W | Large Scrap Metal 47'
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Project Name:

Taylor County
Artificial Reef Monitoring 2023-24

FWC Agreement No. | 23055

Version 1.0 — June 2013

Materials and Methods

1. Data Collection Training Course

All volunteer members of Taylor Reef Research Team will be required to attend
and participate in a basic data collection and fish identification course. The course
will be led by a University of Florida or Sea Grant instructor with experience in
preforming marine survey techniques, scientific diving and identifying Gulf of
Mexico reef fish species. The course will cover, in detail, the proper methods for
Stationary Visual Census (Bohnsack, 1986) and Reef Environmental Education
Foundation’s (R.E.E.F.) Roving Diver technique to collected fish census data
(Schmitt and Sullivan 1996). In addition to learning the survey procedures,
volunteers will be taught how to correctly identify and estimate the number of the
observed fish. Underwater video and/or photos will be used as teaching aids and
test materials, to provide participants with examples of local reef fish communities.

2. Diver Surveys

Survey condition data will be recorded prior to each sampling even and will
include survey date, patch reef name and coordinates, survey time, weather
conditions/sea state, names of surveyors, qualifications of surveyors. All surveyors
must score a 90% or better on the training exam to participate as a volunteer for
fish identification and fish count portion of the surveys within this Agreement.

Fish census data will be collected using the Stationary Visual Census technique
(Bohnsack, 1986). During the timed stationary census, species, counts, and relative
size ranges will be recorded by slowly rotating in place in a conceptual 7-meter
diameter surface-to-substrate cylinder for at least five minutes, and up to ten
minutes depending on fish abundance and diversity. Following the stationary
count, roving diver counts will use the R.E.E.F. method to estimate the total
number of fish using a logarithmic scale: single = 1, few = 2-10, many = 11-100,
abundant = 101 or more. Special attention will be given to locating and identifying
cryptic species during the roving diver survey. Any evidence of live or deceased
sea turtle activity will also be noted.

A representative one to two minute video of the survey will be taken by each dive
group. Each video will be reviewed and compared to collect fiver fish census data
for quality assurance and quality control of data. The videos will also be used to
review any uncertain fish identification and as a future training tool for new
volunteers.

In addition to the biological monitoring activities, the RECIPIENT will also
conduct a material assessment for each site. Inspection of material will include
material description, structural integrity/condition, material layout/footprint, top
and bottom elevation of each artificial reef structure. Divers will also make note of
site visibility, temperature, depth, substrate, and sand overburden.
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Project Name: | Taylor County FWC Agreement No. | 23055

Artificial Reef Monitoring 2023-24

3. Data Analysis

Upon completion of all surveys, a draft data analysis summary detailing all sample
collection, data analysis, and results (including statistical comparison of reef sites
as defined in Table 1) will be prepared and submitted for COMMISSION review.
After the COMMISSION reviews the analysis, the COMMISSION will provide
feedback and edits. The RECIPIENT will then prepare and submit a final data
analysis summary incorporating the feedback and edits.

B. BACKGROUND

Since 1990, Taylor County has deployed more than a total of 1,354 tons of material. Currently the
County has two active permitted sites, Steinhatchee Fisheries Management Area and Buckeye Reef.
In the past, the County relied on Taylor County Reef Research Team (TCRRT), a group of
volunteer divers, to collect and report artificial reef monitoring data. Unfortunately, no homogenous
methods were used for the data collections and the team since disbanded.

With the guidance of Florida Sea Grant agent, Victor Blanco, Taylor County is currently revising
its artificial reef program to re-establish a permanent artificial reef monitoring effort. This effort
includes establishing verified and reliable monitoring procedures, recruiting new members for the
TCRRT and evaluating Taylor County’s reefs on a regular schedule. The first year of the re-
established monitoring program was completed in 2019, and sampled 18 different patch reefs
within the Buckeye Reef Site. A second and third year of sampling selected six patch reef sites with
differing materials and sampled each on a single visit basis. This Agreement is for the continuation
of the Taylor County volunteer monitoring program using information gained in the first three years
of sampling to continue seasonal monitoring at the six representative patch reefs within the
Buckeye Reef Site that serve as long-term monitoring stations.

Chapter 379.249 F.S. creates the Florida Artificial Reef Program to enhance saltwater opportunities
and to promote proper management of fisheries resources associated with artificial reefs for the
public interest. Under the program, the COMMISSION may provide grants and financial and
technical assistance to coastal local governments, state universities, and nonprofit corporations
qualified under s. 501(c)(3) of the Internal Revenue Code for the siting and development of artificial
reefs as well as for monitoring and evaluating such reefs and their recreational, economic, and
biological effectiveness. Chapter 68E-9 F.A.C defines the procedures for submitting an application
for financial assistance and criteria for allocating available funds. The purpose of this rule is to
govern the development of state and federally funded artificial reefs, the review and ranking of
project applications eligible for funding, and the administration of funds from the Florida Artificial
Reef Program.

This artificial reef monitoring project was selected for funding by the COMMISSION based upon
ranking of competitive applications submitted to the Artificial Reef Program pursuant to the criteria
for allocating funds described in Chapter 68E-9, F.A.C. '

C. SUPPORT OF COMMISSION MISSION
Collection of biological and physical data from this study will be used to assess the relative habitat

value and stability among artificial reefs characterized by specific combinations of depth and
structural materials. This information will help with artificial as well as natural reef habitat
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Taylor County FWC Agreement No. | 23055
Artificial Reef Monitoring 2023-24

management in coastal environments in central west Florida. By conducting systematic checks of
artificial reefs deployed for varying amounts of time, as proposed in this study, managers will be
able to better address long-term questions regarding rates of colonization and ecological succession
of benthic assemblages, in addition to changes in physical characteristics of the habitats.

D. DEFINITIONS

The terms and abbreviations used herein shall have the meanings as defined below.

s
11

“Artificial reef” means one or more manufactured or natural objects intentionally
placed on the bottom in predominantly marine waters to provide conditions believed
to be favorable in sustaining, or enhancing the spawning, breeding, feeding, or growth
to maturity of Florida’s managed reef associated fish species as well as to increase the
productivity of other reef community resources which support fisheries. Included in
this definition are artificial reefs developed with one or more of the following
additional objectives: enhancement of fishing and diving opportunities, fisheries
research, and fisheries conservation/preservation purposes.

“Sampling event” means a one-time diver survey collecting fish census data and
conducting a material assessment. Diver surveys must consist of at least four qualified
personnel on a specific reef site to collect the required information.

E. DATA STORAGE

.
L

All data collected during field operations (e.g., navigation and positioning, still and
video imagery in digital format, and multi-beam imagery) will be recorded in the field
in an organized field notebook (e.g. spiral bound book, binder, or collection of
completed survey forms) or digitally recorded on a ruggedized, military-grade shock
resistant, travel hard drive or laptop. If the data is initially recorded in a field notebook,
it will be transferred to an appropriate digital storage device (e.g. external hard drive
or desktop computer) before the end of the Agreement. It is also recommended that a
copy of the field data be placed on a secure server as well. The RECIPIENT will
provide the COMMISSION with a copy of all project data that has been collected
upon request.

2. DELIVERABLES

A. Deliverable #1 (Data Collection Training Course)

During the grant period, a total of one unit of this deliverable is expected.

Specific Project Deliverables and Associated Tasks

One unit for this deliverable consists of the successful completion of a training course
lead by a qualified instructor with experience in fish sampling and identification in the
Gulf of Mexico.
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Artificial Reef Monitoring 2023-24

ii.

ii.

iv.

Minimum Level of Performance

The training course will be in compliance with the requirements stated in the
DESCRIPTION OF GOODS/SERVICES. The RECIPIENT shall widely advertise
the course to interested/qualified individuals. All taught fish sampling methods will be
as described in the DESCRIPTION OF GOODS/SERVICES in the Scope of Work
of this Agreement. At least three (3) participants must attend the training and score at
least 90% on the commission approved final exam.

Documentation / Criteria Used as Evidence of Performance

Documentation to track performance will be a copy of the course advertisement, power
point or similar teaching tool addressing the material that was taught during the course,
a sign in/out attendance sheet, and completed exams from all participants

Timeline for Completion

A draft syllabus including the number of in-class hours, training content and exam will
be submitted to the COMMISSION for approval at least 30 days prior to the class. All
documentation as evidence of the training course performance will be submit prior to
conducting any diver surveys (Deliverable #2).

B. Deliverable #2 (Diver Surveys)

During the grant period, a total of 18 units of this deliverable are expected (three per site).
Survey locations eligible for reimbursement include only the reef sites described in TABLE 1.

i

il

cee
111

Specific Project Deliverables and Associated Tasks

One unit for this deliverable consists of the successful completion of stationary
observation fish census, roving diver fish census, and material assessment by a team
of at least two (2) qualified divers that attended and passed the training course exam
(Deliverable #1).

Minimum Level of Performance

Sampling events will be in compliance with the survey procedures as described in the
DESCRIPTION OF GOODS/SERVICES in the Scope of Work of this Agreement.
Underwater horizontal visibility during a sampling event must be a minimum distance
of at least 10 feet verified by a reference object 10 feet in distance from the surveyor.

Documentation / Criteria Used as Evidence of Performance

Documentation to track performance will be one (1) spreadsheet listing each reef
surveyed providing information on the survey date, survey site and location, survey
time, weather conditions/sea state, names of the surveyors, qualifications of the
surveyors (if not identified in prior submitted report or original project application),
survey method(s), types of reef materials surveyed, material relief, material condition
and estimated horizontal underwater visibility. In addition, any problems experienced
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iv.

or unusual observations or situations during any portion of the surveys shall be
described in the progress report.

Tabular data will be provided in a standard XLS, XLSX, or a CSV tabular format that
can readily be imported into any database or spreadsheet software.

Timeline for Completion

Details of sampling events completed will be submitted to the COMMISSION with
the draft and final versions of the Data Analysis Summary (Deliverable #3 and #4).

C. Deliverable #3 (Draft Version of the Data Analysis Summary)

During the grant period, a total of one unit of this deliverable is expected.

i.

Specific Project Deliverables and Associated Tasks

The RECIPIENT shall provide a draft version of the Data Analysis Summary
describing the project with an evaluation of the work performed and the analysis,
results and benefits in sufficient detail to enable the COMMISSION to assess the
completed project. The draft version of the Data Analysis Summary will contain
summaries of each monitoring event so far including date, dive/video conditions,
physical descriptions of material stability, tables and spreadsheet summarizing
biological characteristics (species lists, fish counts, relative abundance, frequency of
occurrence), and any sea turtle observations. The purpose of the draft summary is to
provide the COMMISSION a minimum 30-day review period to provide the
RECIPIENT with peer review comments on the final analysis summary.

Minimum Level of Performance
At a minimum, the Draft Data Analysis Summary draft shall contain the following:

1. Cover page including title, grant number, date submitted, authors and contact
information, and recommended citation;

2. A draft narrative section outlining project background, methods, results of
material assessment and fish census, and completed and pending statistical
analysis;

3. A draft discussion section that may outline:

a. conclusion and interpretation of results;

b. comparison of findings and conclusions with other studies or fish data
in similar nearby areas

c. possible future research questions;

d. problems that limited the results of the project.

4. Drafts or descriptions of applicable tables, images, charts, and graphs;

5. Appendix listing the names, qualifications, and assigned tasks, of the survey
participants for each survey conducted.

6. Appendix of location maps for each survey sites containing the following:

a. Name of the site;
b. Date surveyed;
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iii.

iv.

¢. North Arrow and Scale Bar
d. Reef material location
7. A tabular inventory, photo documentation and condition of artificial reefs
monitored so far;
8. If requested, all digital images and video so far must be provided on
accompanying CD(s), DVD(s), and/or USB;

Documentation / Criteria Used as Evidence of Performance

Documentation will be an electronic standard DOC, DOCX, or PDF document
providing outlines of a written narrative, methods, results, statistical analysis, and
discussion.

Timeline for Completion

The draft version of the Data Analysis Summary will be submitted to the
COMMISSION at least 60 days prior to the expiration date of the grant Agreement.

D. Deliverable #4 (Final Data Analysis Summary)

During the grant period, a total of one unit of this deliverable is expected.

ii.

Specific Project Deliverables and Associated Tasks

A Final Data Analysis Summary describing the project with an evaluation of the work
performed and the analysis, results and benefits in sufficient detail to enable the
COMMISSION to assess the completed project. The final Data Analysis Summary
will contain summaries of each monitoring event including date, dive conditions,
physical descriptions with tables and spreadsheet summarizing biological
characteristics (species lists, fish counts, relative abundance, frequency of occurrence,
biomass, benthic percent cover and relative abundance) and sea turtle observations.
The Final Data Analysis Summary will also incorporate any feedback from the
COMMISSION that was given in response to the Draft Data Analysis Summary.

Minimum Level of Performance
At a minimum, the final Data Analysis Summary shall contain the following:

1. Cover page including title, grant number, date submitted, authors and contact
information, and recommended citation;
2. A narrative section describing project background, methods, results of material
assessment and fish census, and statistical analysis;
3. A discussion section to provide:
a. conclusion and interpretation of results;
b. comparison of findings and conclusions with other studies or fish data
in similar nearby areas
¢. possible future research questions;
d. problems that limited the results of the project.
4. Tables, images, charts, and graphs;
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Attachment A - SCOPE OF WORK

Project Name: | Taylor County FWC Agreement No. | 23055
Artificial Reef Monitoring 2023-24

5.

6.

10.

11.

Appendix listing the names, qualifications, and assigned tasks, of the survey
participants for each survey conducted.
Appendix of location maps for each survey sites containing the following:

a. Name of the site;

b. Date surveyed;

c. North Arrow and Scale Bar

d. Reefmaterial location
A tabular inventory, photo documentation and condition of artificial reefs
monitored;
All raw and summarized data, formatted in accordance with FWC standards,
must be provided on accompanying CD(s), DVD(s), and/or USB;
If requested, all digital images and video must be provided on accompanying
CD(s), DVD(s), and/or USB;
The entire hard copy final report also provided as a bookmarked Adobe
Acrobat (=) file on a CD rom or USB, suitable for posting on the internet.
Demonstrated incorporation of edits and feedback provided by the
COMMISSION.

iii. Documentation / Criteria Used as Evidence of Performance

Documentation will be an electronic PDF document completed to the satisfaction of
the COMMISSION providing a written narrative, methods, results, statistical
analysis, and discussion.

iv. Timeline for Completion

The Final Data Analysis Summary will be submitted to the COMMISSION prior to
the expiration date of the grant Agreement.

3. FINANCIAL CONSEQUENCES

A. Ifsurvey data is not in compliance with the standards set forth in this Scope of Work, the budget
amount allocated for that deliverable unit will be deducted from the RECIPIENT’s payment.

B. If the Data Analysis Summary is not provided to the satisfaction of the COMMISSION, the
budget amount allocated for that deliverable unit will be deducted from the RECIPIENT s

payment.

C. If the RECIPIENT fails to produce each deliverable unit within the time frame specified by
the Scope of Work, the budget amount allocated for that deliverable unit will be deducted from
the RECIPIENT’s payment.
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Attachment A —~ SCOPE OF WORK

Project Name: | Taylor County FWC Agreement No. | 23055

Artificial Reef Monitoring 2023-24

Table 3 Deliverable Units Cost Summary

Monitoring Deliverables Number of Units Cost Per Unit Total Cost
#1 — Data Collection Training Course 1 $500 $500
#2 — Diver Surveys 18 $250 $4,500
#3 — Draft Data Analysis Summary 1 $1,000 $1,000
#4 — Final 2 Data Analysis Summary 1 $4,000 $4,000
TOTAL $10,000

4. PERFORMANCE

A.

Written or electronically transmitted progress reports must be sent to the COMMISSION's
Contract Manager at no less than 3 month intervals beginning from the date of execution of
this agreement. An email to the COMMISSION’s Contract Manager describing activities that
occurred pertaining to this Agreement will be an acceptable progress report.

The RECIPIENT shall provide the COMMISSION at least a 14 day notice prior to
the scheduled data collection training course of the scheduled date and time of the
course to allow COMMISSION staff to attend.

Any published articles related to this artificial reef activity shall acknowledge funding from the
Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission, and reflect the role of the Florida
saltwater fishing license revenues in assisting in the funding of this activity.

The RECIPIENT agrees to follow all provisions of Section 379.249, Florida Statutes and
Chapter 68E-9, Florida Administrative Code during the term of this Agreement.

The RECIPIENT agrees to comply with all applicable federal, state, and local statutes, rules
and regulations in providing goods or services to the COMMISSION under the terms of this
Agreement; including the general and special conditions specified in any permits issued by the
Department of the Army, Corps of Engineers and/or the Florida Department of Environmental
Protection. The RECIPIENT further agrees to include this as a separate provision in all
subcontracts issued as a result of this Agreement.

If prehistoric or historic artifacts, such as pottery or ceramics, projectile points, dugout canoes,
metal implements, historic building material, or any other physical remains that could be
associated with Native American, early European, or American settlement are encountered at
any time within the project site area, the permitted project shall cease all activities involving
subsurface disturbance in the immediate vicinity of the discovery. The applicant shall contact
the Florida Department of State, Division of Historical Resources, Compliance Review Section
at (850) 245-6333. Project activities shall not resume without verbal and/or written
authorization. In the event that unmarked human remains are encountered during the permitted
activities, all work shall stop immediately and the proper authorities notified in accordance
with Section 872.05, Florida Statutes.

With the exception of lionfish (Pferois sp.) eradication, the harvest of all marine species for
personal use regulated under Chapter 68B, Florida Administrative Code by any means
whatsoever by any individuals operating from vessels during the work days these individuals
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Attachment A — SCOPE OF WORK

Project Name: | Taylor County FWC Agreement No. | 23055

Artificial Reef Monitoring 2023-24

5.

7.

10.

and/or vessels are hired to be engaged in the support of survey and monitoring work funded
under this Agreement is prohibited. Harvest of marine organisms from monitoring sites
designated under this Agreement by personnel or other individuals on board vessels supporting
monitoring activities on the same day as the survey/monitoring activity is occurring, shall result
in immediate termination of this Agreement and nonpayment for any services undertaken on
the day the noncompliance with this paragraph was reported or otherwise identified.

COMPENSATION AND PAYMENT
A. COST REIMBURSEMENT

The RECIPIENT shall be compensated for a maximum of $10,000.00 on a cost
reimbursement basis in accordance with the Cost Reimbursement Contract Payment
Requirements as shown in the Department of Financial Services, “Reference Guide for State
Expenditures” publication. The cost reimbursement requirements section of the Reference
Guide is attached hereto and made a part hereof as Attachment C.

B. INVOICE SCHEDULE
A single final invoice may be submitted after completion of all deliverables and must be
received by the COMMISSION no later than December 31, 2024 to assure availability of

funds for payment. A timely reimbursement request following completion of actual field
operations is strongly encouraged.

C. TRAVEL EXPENSES
No travel expenses are authorized under the terms of this Agreement.

MONITORING SCHEDULE

No additional monitoring activities have been identified at this time; however, additional tasks may be
identified during the pendency of this agreement.

INTELLECTUAL PROPERTY RIGHTS
See Agreement for applicable terms and conditions related to the intellectual property rights.

SUBCONTRACTS

See Agreement for applicable terms and conditions related to subcontracts.
INSURANCE

See Agreement for applicable terms and conditions related to insurance.
SECURITY AND CONFIDENTIALITY

See Agreement for applicable terms and conditions related to security and confidentiality.
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Attachment A — SCOPE OF WORK

Project Name: | Taylor County FWC Agreement No. | 23055
Axrtificial Reef Monitoring 2023-24

11. RECORD KEEPING REQUIREMENTS
See Agreement for applicable terms and conditions related to record keeping requirements.

12. NON-EXPENDABLE PROPERTY
The RECIPIENT is not authorized to use funds provided herein for the purchase of any non-
expendable equipment or personal property valued at $5,000 or more for performance under this

Agreement.

THE REST OF THIS PAGE HAS INTENTIONALLY BEEN LEFT BLANK
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Department of Financial Services

Division of Accounting and Auditing — Bureau of Auditing

The administration of resources awarded by the Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission to the
grantee may be subject to audits and/or monitoring by the Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation
Commission, as described in this section.

In addition to reviews of audits conducted in accordance with 2 CFR 200, Subpart F - Audit Requirements,
and section 215.97, Florida Statutes (F.S.), as revised (see AUDITS below), monitoring procedures may
include, but not be limited to, on-site visits by the Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission
staff, limited scope audits as defined by 2 CFR §200.425, or other procedures. By entering into this
agreement, the grantee agrees to comply and cooperate with any monitoring procedures or processes
deemed appropriate by the Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission. In the event the Florida
Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission determines that a limited scope audit of the grantee is
appropriate, the grantee agrees to comply with any additional instructions provided by the Florida Fish and
Wildlife Conservation Commission staff to the grantee regarding such audit. The grantee further agrees to
comply and cooperate with any inspections, reviews, investigations, or audits deemed necessary by the
Chief Financial Officer (CFO) or Auditor General.

Part I: Federally Funded

This part is applicable if the grantee is a state or local government or a nonprofit organization as defined in
2 CFR §200.90, §200.64, and §200.70.

1. A grantee that expends $750,000 or more in federal awards in its fiscal year must have a single or
program-specific audit conducted in accordance with the provisions of 2 CFR 200, Subpart F - Audit
Requirements. EXHIBIT 1 to this form lists the federal resources awarded through the Florida Fish
and Wildlife Conservation Commission by this agreement. In determining the federal awards
expended in its fiscal year, the grantee shall consider all sources of federal awards, including federal
resources received from the Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission. The determination
of amounts of federal awards expended should be in accordance with the guidelines established in 2
CFR §§200.502-503. An audit of the grantee conducted by the Auditor General in accordance with
the provisions of 2 CFR §200.514 will meet the requirements of this Part.

2. For the audit requirements addressed in Part I, paragraph 1, the grantee shall fulfill the requirements
relative to auditee responsibilities as provided in 2 CFR §§200.508-512.

3. A grantee that expends less than $750,000 in federal awards in its fiscal year is not required to have
an audit conducted in accordance with the provisions of 2 CFR 200, Subpart F - Audit Requirements.
If the grantee expends less than $750,000 in federal awards in its fiscal year and elects to have an
audit conducted in accordance with the provisions of 2 CFR 200, Subpart F - Audit Requirements,
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the cost of the audit must be paid from non-federal resources (i.e., the cost of such an audit must be
paid from grantee resources obtained from other than federal entities).

Part II: State Funded
‘Note: This part is applicable if the grantee is d nonstate enfity.as defined by section 215.97(2), F.S.. =~

1. Inthe event that the grantee expends a total amount of state financial assistance equal to or in excess
of $750,000 in any fiscal year of such grantee (for fiscal years ending June 30, 2017, and thereafter),
the grantee must have a state single or project-specific audit for such fiscal year in accordance with
section 215.97, F.S.; Rule Chapter 691-5, F.A.C., State Financial Assistance; and Chapters 10.550
(local governmental entities) and 10.650 (nonproﬁt and for-profit organizations), Rules of the
Auditor General. EXHIBIT 1 to this form lists the state financial assistance awarded through the
Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission by this agreement. In determining the state
financial assistance expended in its fiscal year, the grantee shall consider all sources of state financial
assistance, including state financial assistance received from the Florida Fish and Wildlife
Conservation Commission, other state agencies, and other nonstate entities. State financial
assistance does not include federal direct or pass-through awards and resources received by a
nonstate entity for federal program matching requirements.

2.  For the audit requirements addressed in Part II, paragraph 1, the grantee shall ensure that the audit
complies with the requirements of section 215.97(8), F.S. This includes submission of a financial
reporting package as defined by section 215.97(2), F.S., and Chapters 10.550 (local governmental
entities) and 10.650 (nonprofit and for-profit organizations), Rules of the Auditor General.

3. If the grantee expends less than $750,000 in state financial assistance in its fiscal year (for fiscal
years ending June 30, 2017, and thereafter), an audit conducted in accordance with the provisions of
section 215.97, F.S., is not required. If the grantee expends less than $750,000 in state financial
assistance in its fiscal year and elects to have an audit conducted in accordance with the provisions
of section 215.97, F.S., the cost of the audit must be paid from the nonstate entity’s resources (i.c., the
cost of such an audit must be paid from the grantee’s resources obtained from other than state
entities).

Part III: Other Audit Requirements

d by the state awardzng entzty that

Note Thzs Part. should be used to speczjj/ any addmonal audzt requzremen
dir li ;

'addztzonal audzts

Part IV: Report Submission

1. Copies of reporting packages for audits conducted in accordance with 2 CFR 200, Subpart F - Audit
Requirements, and required by Part I of this form shall be submitted, when required by 2 CFR
§200.512, by or on behalf of the grantee directly to the Federal Audit Clearinghouse (FAC) as
provided in 2 CFR §200.36 and §200.512.

The FAC’s website provides a data entry system and required forms for submitting the single audit
reporting package. Updates to the location of the FAC and data entry system may be found at the
OMB website.

2.  Copies of financial reporting packages required by Part II of this form shall be submitted by or on
behalf of the grantee directly to each of the following:
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a. The Commission at each of the following addresses:

Office of Inspector General

Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission
Bryant Building

620 S. Meridian St.

Tallahassee, FL 32399-1600

b. The Auditor General’s Office at the following address:

Auditor General

Local Government Audits/342
Claude Pepper Building, Room 401
111 West Madison Street
Tallahassee, Florida 32399-1450

The Auditor General’s website (https:/flauditor.gov/) provides instructions for filing an
electronic copy of a financial reporting package.

3. Copies of reports or the management letter required by Part III of this form shall be submitted by or
on behalf of the grantee directly to:

The Commission at each of the following addresses:

Office of Inspector General

Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission
Bryant Building

620 S. Meridian St.

Tallahassee, FL 32399-1600

4. Any reports, management letters, or other information required to be submitted to the Florida Fish
and Wildlife Conservation Commission pursuant to this agreement shall be submitted timely in
accordance with 2 CFR §200.512, section 215.97, F.S., and Chapters 10.550 (local governmental
entities) and 10.650 (nonprofit and for-profit organizations), Rules of the Auditor General, as
applicable.

5. Grantees, when submitting financial reporting packages to the Florida Fish and Wildlife
Conservation Commission for audits done in accordance with 2 CFR 200, Subpart F - Audit
Requirements, or Chapters 10.550 (local governmental entities) and 10.650 (nonprofit and for-profit
organizations), Rules of the Auditor General, should indicate the date that the reporting package was
delivered to the grantee in correspondence accompanying the reporting package.

Part V: Record Retention

The grantee shall retain sufficient records demonstrating its compliance with the terms of the award(s) and
this agreement for a period of at least five years from the date the audit report is issued, and shall allow the
Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission, or its designee, the CFO, or Auditor General access
to such records upon request. The grantee shall ensure that audit working papers are made available to the
Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission, or its designee, the CFO, or Auditor General upon
request for a period of at least three years from the date the audit report is issued, unless extended in writing
by the Florida Fish and Wildlife Conservation Commission.
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Federal Resources Awarded to the Grantee
Pursuant to this Agreement Consist of the Following:

Shown bélow for each federal program and show total federal resources awarded.

1. Federal Program A:
not applicable

2. Federal Program B:
not applicable

Compliance Requirements Applicable to the Federal Resources
Awarded Pursuant to this Agreement are as Follows:

1. Federal Program A:
not applicable
2. Federal Program B:

not applicable

lézws,;rules,- regula‘tfbﬁé,‘ etc., referred 0. ,

State Resources Awarded to the Grantee
Pursuant to this Agreement Consist of the Following:

Matching Resources for Federal Programs:

Not If the resources awarded 1o the grantee for matchmg represent more than one federal program provzde the
amie information shown below  for each federal prograim ‘anid show total state resoiirces awarded,  for matchmg

1. Federal Program A:
not applicable

2. Federal Program B:
not applicable
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1.  State Project A:

Florida Artificial Reef Program, 77-007: $10,000
2. State Project B:

not applicable

Compliance Requirements Applicable to State Resources Awarded
Pursuant to this Agreement Are as Follows:

1.  State Project A:

A. Only the goods and/or services described within the attached Agreement and Attachment A Scope
of Work are eligible expenditures for the funds awarded.

B. All provisions of Section 379.249, Florida Statutes and Rule 68E-9, Florida Administrative Code
must be complied with in order to receive funding under this Agreement.

C. The Grantee must comply with the requirements of all applicable laws, rules or regulations relating
to this artificial reef project.

2. State Project B:

not applicable

Note: 2 CFR $200.513 and section '215.97(5), E.S., requiire that the xrgfbrmatzon abaut ﬁederal p:""}’grams and 3 "'ate
projects included in EXHIBIT 1 be provided to the grantee. ... e _ i R

For questtons regarding Form DFS-A2-CL, contc 't'yaur FSAA state’ agency Izazson or the Department of Fi manczal
Services, Bureau of. Audxtmg, at FSAA@MyFIandaCF O.com or (850) 413-3060. S
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FWC Contract No. 23055

COST REIMBURSEMENT CONTRACT PAYMENT REQUIREMENTS

Pursuant to the Reference Guide for State Expenditures published by the Department of Financial Services and
found here, invoices submitted for cost reimbursement must be itemized by expenditure category as outlined in
the apporoved contract budget. Additionally, the invoice must evidence the completion of all tasks required to be
performed for the deliverable and must show that the provider met the minimum performance standards
established in the contract. FWC is required to maintain detailed supporting documentation and to make it
available for audit purposes. By submission of the payment request, the agency is certifying that the detailed
documentation to support each item on the itemized invoice is on file at the agency and is available for audit.

FWC is required to maintain the detailed supporting documentation in support of each request for cost
reimbursement and to make it available for audit purposes. Documentation for each amount for which
reimbursement is being claimed must indicate that the item has been paid. Check numbers may be provided in
lieu of copies of actual checks. Each piece of documentation should clearly reflect the dates of service. Only
expenditures for the categories in the approved contract budget may be reimbursed. These expenditures must be
allowable (pursuant to law) and directly related to the services being provided. FWC may require more detailed
documentation as deemed appropriate to satisfy that the terms of the contract have been met.

Listed below are types and examples of supporting documentation:

(1) Salaries: Timesheets that support the hours worked on the project or activity must be kept. A
payroll register or similar documentation should be submitted and maintained. The
payroll register should show gross salary charges, fringe benefits, other deductions and
net pay. If an individual for whom reimbursement is being claimed is paid by the hour, a
document reflecting the hours worked times the rate of pay will be acceptable.

(2) Fringe Benefits:  Fringe Benefits should be supported by invoices showing the amount paid on behalf of
the employee (e.g., insurance premiums paid). If the contract specifically states that
fringe benefits will be based on a specified percentage rather than the actual cost of fringe
benefits, then the calculation for the fringe benefits amount must be shown.

Exception: Governmental entities are not required to provide check numbers or copies
of checks for fringe benefits.

(3) Travel: Reimbursement for travel must be in accordance with Section 112.061, Florida Statutes,
which includes submission of the claim on the approved State travel voucher along with
supporting receipts and invoices.

(4) Other direct costs: Reimbursement will be made based on paid invoices/receipts and proof of payment
processing (cancelled/processed checks and bank statements). If nonexpendable property
is purchased using state funds, the contract should include a provision for the transfer of
the property to the State when services are terminated. Documentation must be provided
to show compliance with DMS Rule 60A-1.017, F.A.C., regarding the requirements for
contracts which include services and that provide for the contractor to purchase tangible
personal property as defined in s. 273.02, F.S., for subsequent transfer to the State.

(5) In-house charges: Charges which may be of an internal nature (e.g., postage, copies, etc.) may be
reimbursed on a usage log which shows the units times the rate being charged. The rates
must be reasonable.

(6) Indirect costs: If the contract specifies that indirect costs will be paid based on a specified rate, then the
calculation should be shown. Indirect costs must be in the approved agreement budget
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FWC Contract No. 23055
and the entity must be able to demonstrate that the costs are not duplicated elsewhere as
direct costs. All indirect cost rates must be evaluated for reasonableness and for
allowability and must be allocated consistently.

For cost reimbursement contracts with another State agency (including State universities):
In lieu of the detailed documentation described above, alternative documentation may be submitted to substantiate

the costs requested to be reimbursed. This alternative documentation may be in the form of FLAIR reports or other
reports containing sufficient detail.

REMAINDER OF PAGE LEFT INTENTIONALLY BLANK
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NOTICE OF PUBLIC HEARING
PURSUANT TO SECTION 10-65, TAYLOR COUNTY CODE OF ORDINANCES
(ORDINANCE NO. 2001-12)

Notice is hereby given that the Taylor County Board of County Commissioners will hold
a public hearing on Tuesday, January 2, 2024 at 6:00 p.m., or as soon thereafter as
possible, in the Taylor County Administrative Complex, 201 East Green Street, Perry,
Florida 32347, to consider an application for SPECIAL EVENT PERMITS (MUD-BOG)
to be held on February 29t — March 3™ and October 10%" — 13t 2024 from 7:00 a.m. to
7:00 p.m. The event will be held at the Iron Horse Mud Ranch site located at 8999 S.
US 19, Perry, Florida.

The application is available to the public and may be inspected at the Taylor County
Planning Department, located at the Administrative Complex (Old Post Office), 201 E.
Green Street, Perry, Florida 32347.

Notice is further given, pursuant to Florida Statutes 286.0105, that any persons deciding
to appeal any matter considered at this hearing will need a record of the hearing and
may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record
includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is to be based.

BY ORDER OF THE BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS, Taylor County, Florida.



JAMIE ENGLISH JIM MOODY MICHAEL NEWMAN PAM FEAGLE THOMAS DEMPS

District 1 District 2 District 3 District 4 District 5
TAYLOR COUNTY
BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS
P, 0. Box 620, Pofy, FL 32345 P A0TE Gresn Stieet, Pery FLazagr D R Box 167, party. L 3348
(650) 836.3540 Fax O o0 8350601 Fax | O as0) 554-2435 Fax
APPLICATION FOR SPECIAL EVENT PERMIT FEE: _§250.00
PERMIT TYPE: MUD BOG DATE: _ 10/18/23
APPLICANT NAME: 3 Ponds, LLC DBA Iron Horse Mud Ranch
MAILING ADDRESS: 8999 S. US 19, Perry, Florida 32348
PROPERTY OWNER: Big Ponds, LLC
PROPERTY ADDRESS: 8999 . US 19
PHONE#: (319) 290-0008 PARCEL # _08744-200 & 08743-000

PROPERTY OWNERS WITHIN 660 FEET OF ACTIVITY

1, Big Ponds, LLC 2, Jack Fernandez

3. 4.

a 6.

4 8.

EVENT DATE(S): START:  February 29, 2024 END: March 3, 2024
HOURS OF OPERATION: START: 7:00 a.m.* END: 7:00 p.m.*

* = See attachment for Daily Hours

EXPECTED ATTENDANCE: 1,000 + MAXIMUM ATTENDANCE: Not Determined
SECURITY PROVIDER: SHERIFFS OFFICE v PRIVATE SECURITY v
(Attach statement from provider)

SANITARY FACILITIES PROVIDER: F. W. Murray & Son’s Sanitation, LLC (850) 672-0103
SOLID WASTE CONTRACTOR: Pop’s Sanitation (850) 973-7809




ATTACH THE FOLLOWING

1. Exact location, legal description, area and shape of all lands used for parking or other incidental
uses.

o Exact location, legal description, area and shape of the land on which the event will take place.
3. Sworn statement from security provided, if other than Taylor County Sheriff’s Department.

4. Statement as to what medical / ambulance services will be provided. (Agreement with DMH-
EMS must contain signature of hospital CEO).

5. Copy of; or Statement of intent to issue, $1,000,000.00 Insurance Policy.

6. Copy of Contract for Solid Waste Disposal.

7. Copy of Contract for Sanitary Waste Disposal.

8. Entry Consent, Adjoining Property Owner, and Hold Harmless agreements signed and notarized.
9. A map drawn to scale of at least 17 = 400, showing:

Property location;

Location of highways, roads, lots and la